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EP MANUFACTURING BHD ( 390116-T )

CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

The Board of Directors of
EP Manufacturing Bhd present
to you the annual report and
financial statements of the
Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017.

HAMIDON BIN ABDULLAH
Executive Chairman
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INDUSTRY REVIEW
The local automotive industry in general, observed lower
turnover in sales for 2017, closely reflecting the previous
year’s performance. This trend has been the result of cautious
consumer spending and what experts say are inflationary
pressures that have affected disposable income.
The Malaysian Automotive Association (MAA) recorded a
marginal decline in Total Industry Volume (TIV) of 3,450 units
(0.6%), from 580,085 units in 2016 down to 576,635 units
in 2017. Despite the industry’s second consecutive year of
decline, MAA remains positive with their outlook in 2018 projecting an increase of 13,365 units (2.3%) in sales volume.
A steady economic growth forecast for 2018 is cited as one
of the determining factors for MAA’s projection.
On a more micro front, in 2017, Perodua’s reign in the
domestic market continued with a total of 204,887 units sold,
contributing to 35.5% of market share. They are followed by
Honda and Proton at 109,511 units (19%) and 70,991 units
(12.3%) respectively. Despite the challenges, our clients have
managed to sustain the top three spots in the industry.
Perodua continued to consolidate their contributions
toward the national automotive market, particularly with the
introduction of the third-generation Myvi in November 2017.
The new version, given a sophisticated facelift, was wellreceived with 28,000 units booked within two months of
launching.
Proton’s partnership with Zhejiang Geely Holding Group Co.,
Ltd (Geely) marked a significant milestone for the national
carmaker; granting them new product platforms, a wider
product range, and manufacturing expertise which will help
to improve their competitiveness and standing within the
domestic market.
Honda continues to top the non-national car market for
the third consecutive year, registering incremental growth
annually. In 2017, they sold 17,681 units (or 19.3%) more
than they did in 2016. With that, Honda once again clinched
its position as the second biggest contributor to the industry,
after Perodua.
Despite their slight decline in sales within the domestic
market, Mazda’s sales results were bolstered by the launch
of their new CX-5 model in October 2017. This model is
sold, both locally and in the ASEAN export market.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
In withstanding this challenging business climate, EPMB
continued to employ proactive measures that are concentrated
on improving production efficiency and mitigating costs.
EPMB has managed to increase its revenue for 2017,
recording RM472.2 million this year as compared to RM435.5
million in 2016. This marked an 8.4% improvement in
revenue. The increment is mainly attributed to higher volumes
from Honda and Mazda.

However, the performance of the Group was affected by an
unfavourable sales mix and fixed overhead costs, inflicting a
loss after tax of RM29.9 million to our Group.
DIVIDENDS
In our current business position, the Board of Directors has
decided that dividends will not be recommended for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
EPMB will continue with its strategies to weather the
challenges that lay ahead for 2018 and to be prepared for
new opportunities that its customers may bring.
PROSPECTS
For the year 2018, MAA has forecasted a TIV of 590,000
units, which is a marginal increase of 2.3% from 576,635
units in 2017. The projection is based on global and domestic
developments that are expected to balance TIV figures in a
way that reflects recent years’ results.
Our warehouse and logistics plant, newly relocated to Alor
Gajah, Melaka, commenced operations in October 2017. The
plant, situated next to Honda Malaysia’s factory, will enable
us to better serve our customer with more timely technical
support and product delivery, while enhancing cost efficiency.
Anticipated outcomes from the Proton-Geely partnership,
such as the planned launch of new car models and the
introduction of a wider product range, are expected to bring
a welcomed boost to Proton. In supporting Proton’s next
endeavor, we will continue to extend to them our services
and products to our best level.
Overall, our customers are expected to persist in staying
competitive as they roll out dynamic new models that are
also well-priced. In that regard, EPMB is prepared and
equipped to meet the volumes that they require.
APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my utmost
gratitude and appreciation to our valued shareholders,
bankers, media, customers, regulatory authorities, and
business partners for their never ending encouragement and
trust in us. The Board would also like to extend its sincere
thanks to the management and staff of EPMB for their
dedication and hard work. This has been important to us as
we weather this challenging business climate and work to
return to profitability.

HAMIDON BIN ABDULLAH
Executive Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
OBJECTIVE
The objective of the MD&A is to provide our shareholders
with a better understanding of the business, operations and
financial position of EPMB Group of Companies.
GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF EPMB GROUP’S BUSINESS
AND OPERATIONS
Corporate Structure

chassis assembly parts for Mazda localisation, incorporating
the latest technology in its production line with advanced
automation and lesser manpower. We understand the
cyclical business nature of the automotive industry, along
with the need to remain resilient and competitive to better
serve our local customers, as such, we have collaborated
via Technical Assistance Agreement with another partner,
Keylex Corporation, a Japanese Tier-1 supplier, to render a
uniformed and consistently high level of technical expertise
among our specialised team across EPMB, ensuring
continuity in supplying quality products to our customers.
PRODUCTS

ADVANCE PRODUCT SYSTEMS SDN. BHD.

100%
EP MOULDS & DIES (M) SDN. BHD.

100%
EP POLYMERS (M) SDN. BHD.

100%
FUNDWIN SDN. BHD.

100%
PEPS-JV (GURUN) SDN. BHD.

100%
PEPS-JV (KEDAH) SDN. BHD.

100%

PT EP METERING & SERVICES

90%
PT TIRTA SERANG MADANI

90%

PEPS-JV (M) SDN. BHD.

PEPS-JV (MELAKA) SDN. BHD.

100%

100%
PEPS Y-TEC (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD.

60%

EPMB was first listed on 11 March 1997 with its core
business in manufacturing and supply of metal body panels,
chassis parts and modular assembly to original equipment
manufacturer (OEM), having Honda, Perodua, Mazda, Proton
and Toyota as our main customers.
We continued to move up the technology notch from 2000
to 2012 with the establishment of technical assistance and
collaboration with Robert Bosch GmbH for the development
and supply of modular products such as Corner Modules,
Intake Air Fuel Modules (IAFM), braking system, Fuel Rail
Assembly and Fuel Tank Modules for our customers. This
collaboration further increased our technical capability and
manufacturing efficiency, which has contributed to the
development of other modular series with more complex
body panels, chassis parts and modular assembly. Our
continuous growth, establishment and competitiveness in
the automotive industries have strategically positioned and
extended our core business to Honda for the localisation of
body panels and chassis assembly parts in 2014.
With our improved technical dexterity, trust gained from our
customers and competencies established, we have further
expanded our business collaboration with Y-tec Corporation
Japan in early 2016, for the supply of body panels and
04

Our products are now mainly metal base automotive
components supplying to Honda, Perodua, Mazda, Proton
as well as Toyota in the Middle East. The main products
segments are body panels, chassis assembly parts,
module assembly such as Cross Member Assembly, Corner
Modules, Fuel Tank Modules, Body-in-White, Side Frame
Assembly, Wheel House Assembly as well as plastics
manufacturing namely Intake Air Fuel Module (IAFM) and
automotive accessories (electrical and exterior).
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EPMB GROUP REVENUE 2012-2017

Sales (RM’000)
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Revenue - The Group recorded total revenue of RM472.2mil
in 2017, an increase of RM36.7mil (8.4%) from RM435.5mil
in 2016. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to
the growth of business with Honda and Mazda Malaysia.
The Group’s sales to Honda Malaysia saw an increase of
41.8% as compared to 2016 following Honda Malaysia
surpassing 100,000 units in sales volume, the highest
achieved by a non-national car brands in Malaysia for the
year of 2017. For the business with Mazda Malaysia, the
Group has benefitted from the launch of New CX-5 model
in October 2017. The full year sales volume of the New
CX-5 in 2018 is expected to increase Group’s sales to
Mazda Malaysia in 2018. The New CX-5 is also for exports
to ASEAN countries. Meanwhile, sales to Proton and export
to Saudi Arabia remained stagnant as compared to 2016.
Loss before interest and tax - The Group reported loss
before interest and tax of RM3.9mil as compared to profit
before interest and tax of RM0.3mil in 2016. This was
mainly due to unfavourable sales mix and fixed overhead
costs which adversely impacted the Group’s profitability.
Finance costs - Finance cost had reduced by RM0.7mil
to RM13.4mil in 2017 from RM14.1mil in 2016. The lower
finance cost recorded was contributed by the decrease of
RM3.8mil in loans and borrowings.
Loss attributable to owners of the Company - The loss
attributable to owners of the Company was RM29.9mil
for 2017 as compared to RM17.3mil in 2016. During the
year, there were inventories written-off of RM10.1mil being
recognised in profit and loss which caused an adverse
impact to the Group. The Group has since identified the
root cause and has taken necessary measures to improve

2014

2015

2016

2017

ADDITIONAL CUSTOMER BASE 2014-2017

the inventory management. Despite the loss, the Group
remains positive and will continue to increase productivity
and efficiency. The Group will also continue to source
new customer base in order to remain competitive in the
automotive industry.
Assets - 2017 saw an addition of RM65.2mil to the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. It was mainly attributable
to the capital expenditure invested in new projects for
Perodua, Honda and Mazda. Included in property, plant
and equipment are the progress payments for 40 acres of
freehold land in Pegoh, Alor Gajah, Melaka and the progress
payments of construction cost of plant and warehouse on
the land.
Cash and cash equivalents decreased by RM22.3mil to
RM18.0mil from RM40.3mil due to the increase in working
capital requirement as the sales increase. The increase in
sales had also resulted the increase in trade receivables
due from customers.
Borrowings and gearing ratio - Total borrowings of the
Group had decreased to RM277.0mil as at 31 December
2017 from RM280.8mil as at 31 December 2016, a decrease
of RM3.8mil. Decreased in borrowings were mainly due
to lower utilisation of banker’s acceptance and timely
repayment of loans and borrowings. The Group’s gearing
ratio has increased to 0.95 times as at 31 December 2017
from 0.88 times as at 31 December 2016. The gearing ratio
is calculated based on total debt divided by total equity
attributable to owners of the company. Total debt refers
to the total borrowings of the Group which amounted to
RM277.0mil and total equity attributable to owners of the
company stood at RM290.6mil as at 31 December 2017.
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EPMB Plant in Alor Gajah, Melaka for Honda Malaysia
We extended our customer base to a non-national car
maker Honda Malaysia, for the localisation of parts since
2014 in a currently rented facility in Rembia, Alor Gajah,
Melaka. We purchased a 40 acres land at Pegoh, Alor
Gajah, Hicom Industrial Estate in Melaka to support Honda’s
business. This new plant comprises of a warehouse and a
manufacturing plant, is strategically located approximately
1km from Honda plant in Pegoh, Alor Gajah, Melaka.

(Equipment, Assembly Jigs and Components Approval and Buy-off Activities)

Operations of the new warehouse in Pegoh started in
October 2017 with deliveries carried out directly to Honda
from this new premise. The existing operations in Rembia
are expected to shift progressively in stages to our new
manufacturing plant in Pegoh upon confirmation and audit
approval by Honda.
Honda introduced one new model and two hybrid models
in 2017. Peps-JV (Melaka) Sdn Bhd commenced production
and supply to Honda in June 2017 for the new CR-V and
in July 2017 for the Jazz Hybrid and City Hybrid versions,
thereby adding further revenue and sales with an additional
volume of 10,835 car sets until the end of 2017.
Our total production volume for Honda increased by 18.7%
in 2017, from 85,186 car sets in 2016 to 101,165 car sets.

(Completed EPMB Warehouse and Logistics Facility at Lot 211, Pegoh)

(Completed EPMB Manufacturing Plant at Lot 210, Pegoh)

(View of new Manufacturing Plant and Warehouse)

EPMB Plant in Sg. Petani, Kedah for Mazda Malaysia
Peps Y-Tec (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd, a joint venture company
between Peps-JV (M) Sdn Bhd and Y-tec Corporation,
Japan (Mazda Tier-1 supplier) was formed in the early 2016
for the localisation of body panels and chassis assembly
parts for Mazda in Malaysia.
Through Peps Y-Tec (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd, Peps-JV (Kedah)
Sdn Bhd, a plant which is equipped with the latest assembly
line developed by our joint venture partner and emphasises
on the latest technology with less manpower dependencies,
was formed to manufacture and supply body panels and
chassis assemblies for Mazda CX-5 and Mazda 3 models
06

(New Model Mazda CX-5)

at its rented facility situated in Sg. Petani Industrial Park,
Kedah. These parts are delivered to Mazda Inokom plant
situated in Kulim, Kedah.
Mazda introduced its new Full Model Change of the CX-5 in
September 2017. Peps-JV (Kedah) Sdn Bhd in collaboration
with Y-tec Corporation, our JV partner, conducted the
development of the body and chassis components. Mazda
Japan witnessed our buy-off activities of these components
and approved mass production and supply for its Mazda
Inokom plant.
Revenue derived from Mazda escalated in 2017 due to
the introduction of the new CX-5 model and for the year
2017, it reported revenue of RM30.5mil with total car sets
of 12,372 compared to year 2016 with RM7.7mil and 5,216
car sets produced.
EPMB Plant in Batang Kali, Selangor for Proton and
Perodua
Production and sales volume from our Batang Kali plant
remains affected by lower production volumes for Proton,
even though the second half of the year showed progressive
recovery from Proton. Perodua being the main market
share holder has maintained consistent volumes. Perodua
introduced the new Myvi in 2017 and our plant started
production of body and chassis components in September
2017. The parts development of the new Myvi was a joint
collaboration between Peps-JV (M) Sdn Bhd and Keylex
Corporation, Japan; the latter being our Technical Agreement
(TA) partner. A new cell assembly system was built to
enhance quality and efficiency of our manufacturing system.
We focused on strategies to reduce manufacturing costs,
improve quality and productivity through programs such as
the Lean Production System (LPS) led by consultants from
the Malaysian Automotive Institute (MAI), applied continuous
kaizen (a culture of continuous improvement) and Lean
Production System and worked on areas of cost reduction
to balance and reduce costs in line with declining volumes
from Proton.
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EPMB Plant in Shah Alam, Selangor

STRATEGIC DIRECTION

Our headquarter is located at Glenmarie, Shah Alam having
EP Polymers (M) Sdn Bhd and Fundwin Sdn Bhd operating
within this facility. EP Polymers (M) Sdn Bhd specialises in
Plastic Injection Moulding and supplies to our local OEMs,
whereas, Fundwin Sdn Bhd supplies car lamps, side steps
and other standard accessories products to our overseas
customers mainly to Saudi Arabia.

Our collaboration with Japanese Tier-1 supplier Y-tec
Corporation, Japan for our Kedah plant has gained much
confidence and trust with our customer, Mazda Malaysia.
From this arrangement, we were awarded the project to
develop, manufacture and supply localised parts for the
new CX-5 model.

Export Market to The Middle East
Overall automotive sales performance in Saudi Arabia took
a major decline in 2017 with only 544,721 vehicles against
715,472 vehicles in 2016, which was a drop of 24% and
the lowest sale in the past four years since 2014. This
was mainly due to the sluggish economy, reflected by the
drop in crude oil prices as well as political instability in
the region. Toyota’s market share dropped to 32% from
its dominance in 2014 at 50%. Korean automotive car
makers such as Hyundai and Kia have since then captured
a substantial market share over Toyota, with Hyundai now
commanding 28% of market share.
Toyota’s sales of 174,310 vehicles for the year 2017 dropped
by 25% compared to 2016 with sales of 218,751 vehicles.
This equally affected sales of our subsidiary, Fundwin Sdn
Bhd, which dropped to RM10.2mil in 2017 from RM11.2
mil in 2016. Fundwin supplies accessories for premium and
medium priced models such as the Land Cruiser 200, Hilux,
Camry and Corolla.
The forthcoming year in 2018 may see some minor recovery in
the Saudi economy but with the government introducing the
Value Added Tax (VAT) of 5%, it is expected that automotive
sales in general will not show an increase in sales.
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
We continuously strive to exceed our customers’
expectation, to build trust and confidence; and to increase
our stakeholders’ confidence, enhance the business’
financial stability and maximise stakeholders’ returns.
Technical Assistance (TA) and Joint Venture (JV) collaborations
with Japanese Tier-1 suppliers were established to enhance
our technical capability and knowledge, with the goal of
improving manufacturing efficiency and to continuously
support OEM localisation activities.
We continue to practice kaizen in our manufacturing
plants. Our ‘back-to-basics’ approach emphasises on lean
manufacturing, quality improvements and safety, which are
meant to produce high quality products at competitive costs
and create long-term sustainability in the automotive industry.

As for our TA partner, Keylex Corporation, Japan, we
installed a new cell assembly module in our Batang Kali
plant for the manufacture and supply of body and chassis
components for the new Perodua Myvi.
We brought forth good manufacturing practices, innovations,
defects proof systems such as the poka yoke concepts (fool
proof concepts) and production methodologies obtained
from our Kedah and Batang Kali plants to our Melaka plant.
These implementations and extracted concepts proved
to provide a more efficient production and good quality
systems for the production of our components for Honda’s
new models introduction.
Our continous efforts to improve quality and efficiency
through technology enhancement with our JV and TA
partners ensure greater sustainability with our customers.
MITIGATING RISKS
Maintaining competitiveness
We are committed to our shareholders in ensuring continued
business competitiveness in the automotive components
industry. This is achieved through the enhancement of our
key performance indexes (KPI) which include:
1.	
Promoting manufacturing efficiencies and quality
standards
2.	
Conducting value-added value engineering (VAVE)
activities
3. 	Driving continuous work-flow improvements and quality
level-up (kaizen)
4. 	
Introducing new technologies and methods through
technical collaborations
5. 	
Exploring new opportunities to expand the business
overseas
Learning and intellectual growth
In line with our strategic direction, we continue to inculcate
teamwork, skills pertaining to leadership and management,
as well as developing a winning team among our employees.
Further training for technical skills, engineering knowledge, and
quality management knowledge were provided to employees
by our TA and JV partners from Keylex Corporation and
Y-tec Corporation at our manufacturing plants. We will
continue with these initiatives to build sustainability, enhanced
knowledge, and productivity among employees.
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Benchmarking
Benchmarking remains as one of our key criteria in achieving
customer satisfaction. This is done by improving efficiency,
quality, delivery, and staff morale. Our visits to our TA and
JV partners’ manufacturing plants in Japan provide us
with indicators for areas of benchmarking to improve our
manufacturing methodology and quality systems. We also
continue to benchmark our products and services against
companies with proven manufacturing best-practices such
as Honda, Perodua, Mazda, Daihatsu and Toyota.
PROSPECTS
The Malaysian Automotive Association (MAA) has taken
into account several factors in forecasting the TIV for 2018.
Amongst them are:
•	
Global growth is projected to increase from 3.6% in
2017 to 3.7% in 2018.
•	
Driven mainly by domestic demand and export
performance, the Malaysian economy is forecasted to
grow between 5% to 5.5% in 2018.
•	Implementation of big ticket projects such as the Tun
Razak Exchange, Light Rail Transit (LRT3), Mass Rapid
Transit (MRT2), and East Cost Rail Link (ECRL) would
add to the growth momentum of the local economy.
•	
As for consumers, the rising cost of living remains
a key concern. Coupled with high household debts,
these concerns are expected to continue to be the
restraining factors hampering consumers’ appetite for
spending, especially on big ticket items.
•	Continuation of strict lending guidelines, particularly for
hire purchase loans by financial institutions following
the implementation of the MFRS 9 and the prevailing
high household debt level.

(Cont’d)

•	
Ride-hailing services and rail services are becoming
more popular as a mode of land transportation
especially in the urban areas.
•	Aggressive promotion campaigns by car companies.
Proton’s new partner, Geely Corporation, has announced
projections of new developments and model line-ups and
planned to increase production volumes at their Tanjung
Malim plant. To sustain our revenues, we will take this
opportunity to actively participate with Proton.
As for Perodua, Honda, and Mazda, EPMB will reinforce
its commitment to continually provide high-quality parts
and excellent service. We will work relentlessly to grow our
business in a way that will remain resilient and competitive
in the marketplace, both locally and abroad.
For the coming year of 2018, we expect to further increase
our revenue of the previous year with Mazda from our
Sg. Petani, Kedah plant which commenced operations in
August 2016.
Our new manufacturing plant in Alor Gajah is completed and
we expect to shift our assembly lines operations in stages
from the old plant upon confirmation and audit approval
by Honda. This is in support of Honda’s volume and their
introduction of new models. With economies of scale, the
new facility, which has a larger area than our current plant,
will provide us with a better and more efficient production
layout, thereby giving us further opportunities to improve
our production system and efficiencies.
With the challenging economic outlook, we remain positive
and confident about the future of our business as we
expect a gradual upswing in the industry in the coming
years. On this front, we will leverage on the business
initiatives that we have already put in place to maximise our
opportunities in light of the changing dynamics in the end
consumer market.

MAA’s forecast for the industry in 2018 is as follows:
Market Segment
Passenger Vehicles
Commercial Vehicles
Total Vehicles

2018 (Forecast)

2017 (Actual)

Variance (Units)

Variance (%)

526,500

514,679

11,821

2.3

63,500

61,956

1,544

2.5

590,000

576,635

13,365

2.3

For the next four years, indicative TIV forecasts for 2019 until 2022 are as follows:
Market Segment
Passenger Vehicles
Commercial Vehicles
Total Vehicles
Growth Rate

08

2019

2020

2021

2022

536,800

548,200

560,250

573,100

65,000

66,500

68,000

69,600

601,800

614,700

628,250

642,700

2.0%

2.1%

2.2%

2.3%
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5-YEAR GROUP
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
YEAR ENDED
31.12.2013
RM’000

31.12.2014
RM’000

31.12.2015
RM’000

31.12.2016
RM’000

31.12.2017
RM’000

452,312

518,771

502,301

435,523

472,241

EBIT/(LBIT) (Earnings/(Loss) Before Interest
and Taxes)

32,016

37,711

23,581

300

(3,889)

EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Tax,
Depreciation and Amortisation)

64,649

91,208

82,871

73,013

61,727

Profit/(Loss) before tax

20,591

26,980

11,138

(13,393)

(16,923)

Profit/(Loss) after tax

16,327

18,606

3,566

(17,298)

(29,944)

Net profit/(loss) attributable to Owners
of the Company

16,412

18,678

3,957

(17,315)

(29,942)

Total assets

654,595

696,475

675,612

698,812

699,061

Total borrowings

234,652

268,892

245,637

280,795

276,989

Shareholders’ equity

327,148

339,424

337,796

319,591

290,553

0.72

0.79

0.73

0.88

0.95

10.30

11.73

2.48

(10.88)

(18.83)

2.05

2.13

2.12

2.00

1.82

4

4

1

-

-

Gross dividend yield (%)

5.56

5.19

1.43

-

-

Price earning (PE) ratio

6.99

6.56

28.23

(4.60)

(2.66)

Share price as at the financial year end (RM)

0.72

0.77

0.70

0.50

0.50

Revenue

Gearing Ratio (Times)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (sen)
Net asset per share (RM)
Gross dividend per share (sen)
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5-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
REVENUE

negative

(3,889)

negative

518.771

2015

502,301

2016

435,523

2017

472,241

2013

32,016

2014

37,711

2015

23,581

2016

300

positive

2013

16,327

2014

18,606

2015

3,566

(29,944)

2017

positive

RM’000

negative

2013

327,148

2014

339,424

2015

337,796

2016

319,591

2017

290,553

positive

RM’000

BASIC
EARNINGS/
(LOSS) PER
SHARE

positive

2017

2016

SHAREHOLDER’S
EQUITY

10

2014

(17,298)

negative

negative

452,312

RM’000

PROFIT/
(LOSS)
AFTER TAX

NET ASSET
PER SHARE

2013

RM’000

EBIT/(LBIT)

negative

(Cont’d)

2013

10.30

2014

11.73

2015

2.48

(10.88)

2016

(18.83)

2017

positive

SEN
2013

2.05

2014

2.13

2015

2.12

2016

2.00

2017

1.82

RM

positive
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ADVANCE PRODUCT SYSTEMS SDN. BHD.

100%
EP MOULDS & DIES (M) SDN. BHD.

100%
EP POLYMERS (M) SDN. BHD.

100%
FUNDWIN SDN. BHD.

100%
PEPS-JV (GURUN) SDN. BHD.

100%
PEPS-JV (KEDAH) SDN. BHD.

PT EP METERING & SERVICES

90%

100%

PT TIRTA SERANG MADANI

PEPS-JV (M) SDN. BHD.

PEPS-JV (MELAKA) SDN. BHD.

100%

90%
100%
PEPS Y-TEC (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD.

60%
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OUR PRODUCTS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HAMIDON BIN ABDULLAH
(Executive Chairman)
ZULKEFLY BIN BAHARUDDIN
(Deputy Executive Chairman)
JOHAN BIN HAMIDON
(Executive Director)
AIDAN HAMIDON
(Executive Director)
DR LINDEN HAMIDON
(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)
SHAARI BIN HARON
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
TAN SRI DATUK HUSSIN BIN HAJI
ISMAIL
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
DATO’ IKMAL HIJAZ BIN HASHIM
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
HEW VOON FOO
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Shaari Bin Haron (Chairman)
Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Shaari Bin Haron (Chairman)
Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail
Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim
Hew Voon Foo

Lot 210, PT 2229
Jalan Hicom Pegoh 7
Kawasan Perindustrian
Hicom Pegoh
78000 Alor Gajah, Melaka

5.

No 2, Lot 333
Jalan PKNK 3/5
Kawasan Perindustrian Sungai
Petani (LPK)
08000 Sungai Petani, Kedah

Shaari Bin Haron (Chairman)
Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail
Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim
Hew Voon Foo
COMPANY SECRETARY
Teo Wei Theng
(MAICSA 7056007)
REGISTERED OFFICE/PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS
No 8 & 10, Jalan Jurutera U1/23
Seksyen U1, Kawasan Perindustrian
Hicom Glenmarie
40150 Shah Alam, Selangor
Tel : 603 78036663
Fax : 603 78049761
SHARE REGISTRAR
Mega Corporate Services Sdn. Bhd.
Level 15-2
Bangunan Faber Imperial Court
Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur
Tel : 603 26924271
Fax : 603 27325388
MANUFACTURING PLANTS
1.

Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim
Hew Voon Foo

4.

Lot 1403, 1406 & 1409
Batu 29, Jalan Ipoh
44300 Batang Kali, Selangor

2.	No 8 & 10, Jalan Jurutera
U1/23, Seksyen U1
Kawasan Perindustrian Hicom
Glenmarie
40150 Shah Alam, Selangor
3.

SP 1650
Jalan Industri 4
Kawasan Industri Rembia
78000 Alor Gajah, Melaka

AUDITORS
KPMG PLT
Chartered Accountants
Level 10, KPMG Tower
8, First Avenue, Bandar Utama
47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor
Tel : 603 77213388
Fax : 603 77213399
PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Affin Islamic Bank Berhad
CIMB Bank Berhad
HSBC Amanah Malaysia Berhad
HSBC Bank Malaysia Berhad
Malayan Banking Berhad
Maybank Islamic Berhad
Malaysian Industrial Development
Finance Berhad
Sumitomo Mitsui Finance and
Leasing Company, Limited
STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Main Market
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
Stock Name : EPMB
Stock Code : 7773
WEBSITE
www.epmb.com.my
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DIRECTOR’S PROFILE

1

2

1. HAMIDON BIN ABDULLAH
2. ZULKEFLY BIN BAHARUDDIN

HAMIDON BIN ABDULLAH

ZULKEFLY BIN BAHARUDDIN

Aged 65, Malaysian, Male
Executive Chairman (Non-Independent)

Age 50, Malaysian, Male
Deputy Executive Chairman (Non-Independent)

Encik Hamidon bin Abdullah is the Executive Chairman and
major shareholder of the Company. He was appointed to
the Board of EPMB on 20 January 1997. Encik Hamidon is
the founder of EPMB Group and has been the driving force
in developing the Group as one of the Tier-1 automotive
component vendor in Malaysia.

Encik Zulkefly bin Baharuddin was appointed to the Board
of EPMB on 1 April 2016. He had his tertiary education
at University of Technology Malaysia with a Bachelor of
Mechanical (Aeronautical) Engineering.

Encik Hamidon obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Applied
Mathematics & Computer Science in 1974 and a Master’s
Degree in Urban Planning in 1975 from the University of
Adelaide, Australia. Upon graduation in 1975, he started his
career as a System Analyst with the South Australia Highway
Department. After 4 years, he was engaged as an Urban
Planning Consultant with P.G. PakPoys & Associates (KL).
In 1983, he joined an architect firm, Hijjas Kasturi & Associates.
He is also the Executive Chairman of Nadayu Properties
Berhad.
His spouse, Dr Linden Hamidon and two sons, Johan
bin Hamidon and Aidan Hamidon, are also Directors and
shareholder of the Company.
He attended all five Board Meeting of the Company held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

He has a total of 26 years of experience in the automotive
industry and his career spans over several established and
international companies such as Ford Malaysia Sdn Bhd,
Delloyd Industries (M) Sdn Bhd, Delphi Automotive Systems
(M) Sdn Bhd and Autoliv Hirotako Sdn Bhd.
Encik Zulkefly joined EPMB Group in 2002 as a Senior
Manager - Business and Development. He was instrumental
for the development of Intake Air Fuel Module and Engine
Management System together with the collaboration of
Robert Bosch GmbH as Technical Assistance (TA) partner. His
contribution to the group’s business expansion and success
led him to be promoted to Director - Business & Development
in 2004.
He led the development of metal stamping and modular
assembly products and introduced new foreign partners from
Japan, Keylex Corporation and Y-tec Corporation, who are tier
1 vendors to Mazda. Being TA and Joint Venture partners, they
brought in technology advancement and quality enhancement.
His initiatives brought in further business from non-national
car makers, Mazda and Honda.
Encik Zulkefly was promoted to Deputy Executive Chairman
of EPMB in 2016 and oversees a wider spectrum of the
group’s overall businesses and manufacturing operations to
continuously lead EPMB to greater and successful heights.
He attended all five Board Meeting of the Company held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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(Cont’d)

3
4

5

3. JOHAN BIN HAMIDON
4. DR LINDEN HAMIDON
5. AIDAN HAMIDON

JOHAN BIN HAMIDON

AIDAN HAMIDON

Aged 39, Malaysian, Male
Executive Director (Non-Independent)

Aged 35, Malaysian, Male
Executive Director (Non-Independent)

Encik Johan bin Hamidon was appointed to the Board on
28 August 2012. He obtained his Bachelor of Arts Degree
from Murdoch University, Perth Australia in 2002.

Encik Aidan Hamidon was appointed to the Board of EPMB
on 28 August 2012. He graduated from the University of
Melbourne in 2004 with a Bachelor of Commerce Degree
majoring in Actuarial Studies. Encik Aidan brings a combination
of experience from the Australian banking industry as well as
the Malaysian property industry to the Group.

Encik Johan has extensive experience in automotive
business functions in business development, manufacturing
operations and supply distribution. In his incumbencies he
has reengineered business operations, improved logistical
supply practices, improved manufacturing efficiencies and
laid down foundations for operational growth.
His parents, Hamidon bin Abdullah and Dr Linden Hamidon
and brother, Aidan Hamidon are also Directors and major
shareholder of the Company.
He attended four Board Meeting of the Company held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

DR LINDEN HAMIDON
Aged 65, Australian/Malaysian PR, Female
(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director)
Dr Linden Hamidon was appointed to the Board of EPMB on
20 January 1997. She holds a Bachelor of Dentistry Degree
from the University of Adelaide, Australia and has been a
practicing Dentist since 1979.
Her spouse, Hamidon bin Abdullah and two sons, Johan bin
Hamidon and Aidan Hamidon, are also Directors and major
shareholder of the Company.

Encik Aidan started his career in National Australia Bank
having exposure ranging from market settlements, asset
management, and performance and risk reporting. Major
clients serviced included active fund managers, institutional
superannuation and Australian state government funds.
Encik Aidan also has 5 years of experience in the Malaysian
property development industry, with exposure to financing,
product development, market & sales strategies and overall
strategic direction.
Since joining EPMB, Encik Aidan has played key roles in the
strategic outlook of the Group and developing the Group’s
business, along with exposures to operations, business
development, project management and group financing.
He also sits on the board of Nadayu Properties Berhad.
His parents, Hamidon bin Abdullah and Dr Linden Hamidon
and brother, Johan bin Hamidon are also Directors and major
shareholder of the Company.
He attended four Board Meeting of the Company held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

She attended all five Board Meeting of the Company held
during the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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7
6

6. SHAARI BIN HARON
7. TAN SRI DATUK HUSSIN BIN HAJI ISMAIL

SHAARI BIN HARON

TAN SRI DATUK HUSSIN BIN HAJI ISMAIL

Aged 67, Malaysian, Male
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Aged 65, Malaysian, Male
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Encik Shaari bin Haron was appointed to the Board of
EPMB on 20 January 1997. He obtained his Bachelor of Law
(Honours) Degree from the International Islamic University in
1991. He was admitted to the Bar in May 1993 and thereafter
commenced his law practice in Kuala Lumpur. He has been in
legal practice for 25 years and currently a consultant at Messrs
Abu Bakar & Yong. In the corporate sector, Encik Shaari also
sits on the board of Vertice Berhad (formerly known as Voir
Holdings Berhad) as an independent director.

Tan Sri Datuk Hussin bin Haji Ismail was appointed to the
Board of EPMB on 27 April 2015. Tan Sri holds a Diploma in
Police Science from Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia.

Encik Shaari is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
He attended all five Board Meeting of the Company held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

Tan Sri Hussin is a former Deputy Inspector General of Police in
Royal Malaysian Police (RMP). His excellent achievements are
attributed to 39 years of working experience in various senior
positions in RMP. The exposure of managing at various levels
in RMP are added values to extensive policing knowledge and
skills which have further enhanced personal capabilities and
credibility in managing the force in the higher position. Tan Sri
Hussin is also the Chairman of Police Cooperative Society Bhd
since 2016.
Tan Sri Hussin also sits on the board of JAKS Resources
Berhad and Rohas Tecnic Berhad.
Tan Sri Hussin is also a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
He attended four Board Meeting of the Company held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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8

9

8. DATO’ IKMAL HIJAZ BIN HASHIM
9. HEW VOON FOO

DATO’ IKMAL HIJAZ BIN HASHIM
Aged 65, Malaysian, Male
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz bin Hashim was appointed to the Board
of EPMB on 5 May 2009. He holds an M.Phil in Land
Management from University of Reading, UK and Bachelor
of Arts (Honours) from University of Malaya.
Dato’ Ikmal began his career in the Administrative and
Diplomatic Service of the Government of Malaysia in 1976.
In late 1991, he left the government services and joined
United Engineers (Malaysia) Berhad as General Manager of
Malaysia-Singapore Second Crossing project.
In 1993, he became the Chief Operating Officer of Projek
Lebuhraya Utara-Selatan Berhad (“PLUS”) and in 1995 he
was promoted as the company’s Managing Director.
In 1999, he then was appointed as the Managing Director
of Prolink Development Sdn Bhd (“Prolink”) and concurrently
assumed the position of President for the Property Division
of the Group. He was subsequently appointed as Managing
Director of Renong Berhad from 2002 until 2003.
In November 2003, Dato’ Ikmal was seconded to Pos
Malaysia Berhad as the Chief Executive Officer/Managing
Director as well as the Group Managing Director of Pos
Malaysia and Services Holdings Berhad. Then in November
2007, he was appointed as Chief Executive of Iskandar
Regional Development Authority (“IRDA”) until February
2009. He then become the Chairman of Faber Group
Berhad from 1 March 2009 until June 2014. During the
said period he too was also appointed as Independent
Non-Executive Director of UEM Land Berhad.
Currently, Dato’ Ikmal’s other directorships in public
companies include Nadayu Properties Berhad, MB World
Group Berhad and Kumpulan Perangsang Selangor Berhad.

Dato’ Ikmal is also a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
He attended all five Board Meeting of the Company held
during the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

HEW VOON FOO
Aged 57, Malaysian, Male
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr Hew Voon Foo was appointed to the Board of EPMB on 17
April 2002 as a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director. He
was re-designated as Independent Non-Executive Director on
26 April 2013. He is a Fellow member of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants (“CIMA”) and the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants (“MIA”).
Mr Hew has extensive experience in financial management
gained over the years in an audit firm and as financial controller
in a local manufacturing company. Currently, he also served on
the board of Genetec Technology Berhad.
He is also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.
He attended all five Board Meeting of the Company held during
the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
Save as disclosed, none of the Directors have:
1.	any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder
of the Company;
2.	any conflict of interest with the Company;
3.	any convictions for offences within the past five years other than
traffic offences; and
4.	any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory
bodies during the financial year.
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1

2

1. MOHD NIZAM BIN MOHAMED
2. ONG TSUEY YUN

MOHD NIZAM BIN MOHAMED

ONG TSUEY YUN

Aged 50, Malaysian, Male
Director of Manufacturing

Aged 52, Malaysian, Female
Director of Finance & Special Project

Encik Mohd Nizam bin Mohamed is Director of Manufacturing
of the EPMB Group. He has been with the Group since 1991
and was appointed to his current position in 2007. Encik Nizam
graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering from Lamar University, Texas, USA in 1990.

Ms. Ong Tsuey Yun is the Director of Finance & Special
Project. She has been with the Company since 1991 and
was appointed to her current position in 2007. Apart from her
leadership role in Finance, she has been responsible for the
strategic and tactical matters of EPMB. She also serves as
Director in several subsidiaries of EPMB.

As Director of Manufacturing, Encik Nizam’s range of
responsibilities involve leading management teams in the
areas of manufacturing, purchasing, human resource &
administration, quality management, customer liaison and
engineering.
His prior experience includes Operations Manager/Production
Engineer in Pesaka Nuri (M) Sdn Bhd from 1994 to 1997,
Production Engineer in EP Polymers (M) Sdn Bhd from 1992
to 1993 and Production Engineer for KB Teknik Sdn Bhd from
1991 to 1992.

Prior to joining EPMB, she was with ChungHwa Picture Tubes
(Malaysia) Sdn Bhd, where she was involved in the starting
up of new plants, implementing costing, managing inventory,
working with management information systems and financial
planning.
Ms. Ong graduated from University Malaya in 1989 with a
Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting (Honours).

Save as disclosed, none of the Key Senior Management have:1.
any directorship in public companies and the Company;
2.	any family relationship with any directors and/or major shareholder of the Company;
3.
any conflict of interest with the Company;
4.	any convictions for offences within the past five years other than traffic offences; and
5.	any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
OUR STRATEGIC DIRECTION TOWARDS BUSINESS SUSTAINABILITY AND SUCCESS
ABOUT THIS REPORT
In this Sustainability Report, we review our efforts and
progress in 2017 and provide details of our commitments
and priorities in making our business maneuvers sustainable.
We at EPMB are dedicated to continually improving the
integration of sustainability into our working environment
and business processes. We are committed to accountability
and transparency in our sustainability performance.
We look forward to moving beyond current activities and
scope, towards measuring outcomes and the impact of our
work in the near future.
SCOPE OF THE REPORT
• 	This is the inaugural sustainability report and there were
challenges in consolidating the information for the report.
• 	
T his report focuses on our automotive plants in
Malaysia, to begin with our sustainability reporting.

• 	
We have attempted to report only issues that are
material to EPMB.
REPORTING PERIOD
This report, which will be produced annually, covers the
period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017 (Fiscal/
Financial Year 2017).
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
We believe that the approach of stakeholder engagement is
integral to the development of its sustainable strategy and
subsequent long-term sustainable growth.
Thus EPMB and its subsidiary companies focus on building
good rapport and relationships with their stakeholders
through various communication platforms to obtain feedback
on issues that are of importance to the business and the
stakeholders.

Frequency of
Engagement

Stakeholders Concern Sustainability Issues

Annual General Meeting
Briefing/Meeting
Extraordinary General
Meeting
Electronic Communication

Annually
As needed
As needed

• Profitability
• Sales performance
• 	 Financial & volume performance

As needed

•

Government

Income tax filing
Annual Return
Annual Financial Statement
Quarterly Financial Results
GST reporting
Electronic Communication
Duty exemption

Annually
Annually
Annually
Quarterly
Monthly
As needed
Annually

• 	 Compliance with legal regulations
• Tax filing
• 	Quarterly and yearly financial reporting
• GST submission
• Environmental Issues
• 	 Occupational Safety & Health
• Duty exemption submission

Customer

Customer Feedback
Questionnaire/Survey
Social media
Electronic Communication
Vendor briefing
Quality System
Accreditation

As
As
As
As
As
As

• Product quality
•	After sales service, products/service delivered
• Quality certification

Employees

Monthly payroll
Management meetings
Staff appraisals
Training & product
knowledge
Management Meeting
with Union

Monthly
Monthly
Annually
Periodically

Stakeholder

Mode of Engagement

Shareholders &
Investors

needed
needed
needed
needed
needed
needed

As needed

Industry environment

• Learning and Development
• Prompt salary payments
• Performance management
• Stress, balance and workload
• Fostering closeness and team work
• 	Empowerment & Accountability
• Industrial Harmony
• Compensation & Benefit
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(Cont’d)

MATERIALITY

Risk Mitigation, Procurement
Practices, Operational
Efficiency Program
Energy Conversation,
Green Management and
Compliance
Safety and Health,
Learning and Intellectual
Growth

Materiality, in the context of sustainability, involves taking
account of EPMB’s Economic, Environmental and Social
impact assessments and the corresponding decisions of its
stakeholders.
The Group’s sustainability strategy focuses primarily on the
critical materiality issues of its business operations.
EPMB uses the following indicators, as listed below, to
highlight the materiality issues that have a significant impact
on its business and stakeholders.
•
•
•
•
•
•

Energy Conservation
Environmental Management
Occupational Health and Safety
Learning and Intellectual Growth
Social Participation and Relation
Risk Mitigation

The materiality processes enable EPMB to chart out its
sustainability matters thereby presenting a possibility for
better business strategic performance in the short, medium
and long term.

ECONOMY
STRATEGIC DIRECTION
EPMB established the foundation and key indicators to focus on:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Unity and common goals
Learning and intellectual growth
Transparency
Teamwork and respect
Discipline
Continuous improvement

From this foundation, our subsidiary companies form groups to conduct several activities categorised to improve productivity,
quality, delivery, and efficiency, thereby creating a sense of employee commitment, accountability, empowerment and
education which in turn reflect towards stakeholder satisfaction.
TECHNOLOGY ADVANCEMENT
In keeping abreast with the latest production techniques, EPMB continues to work closely with its Technical Agreement (TA)
partners with Japanese Tier-1 supplier such as Keylex Corporation, Japan, to set up a new cell assembly for the production
of the new Myvi for Perodua, thereby enhancing quality and productivity. This active participation in Perodua’s productivity
and quality improvement programmes and missions ensures our sustainability as one of Perodua’s active vendors.
As for Mazda, we collaborate with Y-tec Corporation, Japan, our Joint Venture (JV) partner, to enhance and implement
new technology and equipment for the production of the new CX-5 model which was launched in September 2017. This
partnership will serve to ensure the continuality and sustainability of our business with Mazda Malaysia.
With the new technology and production systems implemented through our collaboration with Keylex Corporation and Y-tec
Corporation in our Batang Kali and Kedah plants, these systems and concepts were further adopted in our Melaka plant.
In adopting these concepts, we established good manufacturing practices, innovate and enhance production methodologies
to provide a more efficient production and good quality systems for the production of our components for Honda Malaysia.
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STRATEGIC DIRECTION TOWARDS SUCCESS-2017

MITIGATING RISKS
EPMB continues to address key areas of risks in order to
maintain sustainability and competitiveness in the current
challenging market.
•

Diversification of Customer Base

	
The Group employs Good Manufacturing Practices
(GMP) and practices steps to enhance Safety, Quality,
Cost, Delivery, and Morale (SQCDM) to stay competitive
and to remain as the preferred Tier-1 supplier for our
current customers. Through our Joint Ventures and
Technical Collaboration with our partners from Japan,
we have been able to expand our business from
our previous customer base of national carmakers to
non-national carmakers like Honda and Mazda.
•

Foreign Exchange Exposure

	In order to avoid losses due to fluctuations in foreign
currency, which affects imports and exports, a backto-back arrangement with customers and suppliers are
made during contract price reviews.

•	
I ncrease of Raw Materials, Purchase Parts and
Consumables Costs
	
The Group ensures efficient material planning and
inventory control through its Enterprise Resources
Planning (ERP) system and conducts reports for the
Group’s decision making. Vendor management and
Value Added Value Engineering activities are also closely
monitored. Furthermore, efficient tooling and equipment
design and production efficiency are areas implemented
to increase material yield and reduce waste.
•

Increase of Direct Labour and Staff Costs

	
Emphasising on learning and intellectual growth,
we continue to provide technical skills, engineering
knowledge, and quality management knowledge in
our training modules. The aim of this initiative is
to build sustainability, knowledge, and productivity
among employees. This practice also creates new
areas where employees are able to multitask on their
jobs. Additionally, we continue to adopt and implement
semi-automatic or fully-automatic assembly modules
and new technology in our manufacturing plants
with our Joint Venture partners through our Technical
Collaboration. These cell systems reduce dependency
on direct labour, thereby ensuring greater quality and
better production efficiency.
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ENVIRONMENT
and Shitsuke), meaning to sort, set in order, shine,
standardise, and sustain. As such, we continuously
organise work spaces for efficiency and effectiveness
by identifying and properly storing all items used,
maintaining the area and items, and sustaining the
new order.

EPMB has been proactive and committed to protecting
and improving the environment surrounding the Group’s
operations. We endeavour to protect the environment and
mitigate the impacts of our operations.
Sustainable green practices have been embedded within
our operations to ensure that business is profitable for the
shareholders and has minimal impact on the environment.
Several policies are in place to fortify and strengthen
the protection of the environment in all aspects of
operations. They include compliance to Environmental
Management standards such as ISO14001:2004, inculcating
and implementing Safety, Health and Environment (S.H.E)
practices and policies within the Group’s operations.

•

Identify abnormalities

	
Being alert, observing and identifying possible
abnormalities in the workplace is an important aspect
of taking pre-emptive measures to reduce possible
non-conformance in our processes as well as any
product non-compliance.
•

Enhance safety at the workplace

We ensure that our effluents and discharges are treated to
comply with regulations from the Department of Environment
(DOE). To achieve this, we have an in-house Industrial
Effluent Treatment System (IETS). For the disposal of sludge,
we appoint Kualiti Alam Sdn. Bhd. and Green Nature
Elite Sdn. Bhd. who are the DOE’s designated wastedisposal agencies to dispose of the sludge.

	
Providing employees with proper uniform and Total
Protective Equipment (TPE) for safety. These prevent the
occurrence of accidents during hazardous operations
such as during stamping and blanking, spot welding
and arc welding. These are mandatory requirements
within the scope of our Safety and Health Rules and
Regulations established at our plants.

EPMB supports the government’s initiative in promoting
renewable energy. We installed 8,164 solar panels in our
four plants in Batang Kali to provide a clean source of
renewable energy with a much lower environmental impact
than conventional energy technology.

•

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT (S.H.E.)
Inculcating and implementing a safe and clean environment
for our employees through:
•

The 5S culture

	
We emphasise on training and awareness of the
Japanese concept of 5S (Seiri, Seiton, Seiso, Seiketsu,
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Cleanroom facilities

	
We built and provided employees with this facility
for the assembly of engine-related components such
as fuel rails and intake air fuel modules (IAFM) that
require high levels of safety specifications, as well as
for the protection of employees. This is also one of the
features that is in compliance to our ISO14001:2004
accreditation.
	
All of the above practices have been implemented to
provide a clean and safe working environments and to
help increase staff morale.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM WITH ISO14001:2004 ACCREDITATION, ENSURING:
•	A green and clean working environment
	
Providing proper clean room facilities for the manufacture of high-end value-added components and maintaining a
green environment surrounding the manufacturing plants.
•

Waste management and recycling practices

	Establishing systems and rules in the disposal of wastes to protect the environment, including
a dedicated in-house effluent treatment system and proper sludge disposal via a specialised
waste-disposal agency.
•

Total preventive maintenance

	
Ensuring regular and systematic upkeep of production equipment to avoid unnecessary
losses in production due to breakdowns.
•

Safety at the workplace

	Providing proper protection attire for employees and establishing rules and regulations as
well as safety procedures in the manufacturing plants.
ENERGY CONSERVATION
EPMB supports the government’s Economic Transformation Plan (ETP) under the Oil, Gas and Energy segment by installing
8,164 solar panels at our four plants in Batang Kali for energy conservation. This facility covers approximately 3.2 acres
of roof space.
Deploying the Building Integrated Photovoltaic (BPIV) system, it yields a capacity of 2MW of renewable energy using clean
technology. This BPIV system reduces CO2 emissions by 39,984 tons per year.
Correspondingly, this project also created employment opportunities in the following sectors:
•
•
•
•

Engineering
Procurement
Consultancy
Construction

We have been able to generate additional revenues by selling the renewable energy back to Tenaga Nasional Berhad (TNB)
via a Feed In Tariff (FIT) scheme, which was introduced by the Sustainable Energy Development Authority (SEDA). A contract
has been made for a 21-year supply of renewable energy.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

OUR EMPLOYEES ARE OUR VALUABLE ASSETS. AT EPMB WE BELIEVE IN
DEVELOPING AND PROVIDING INTELLECTUAL GROWTH TO OUR EMPLOYEES
WHO IN TURN WILL CONTRIBUTE TO OUR GROUP’S SUSTAINABILITY
AND PROVIDING SATISFACTION TO OUR STAKEHOLDERS AND SERVICES
TO THE PUBLIC.
LEARNING AND INTELLECTUAL GROWTH
EPMB recognises that success and growth of the group is built on the foundation of a skilled and talented workforce.
We therefore continue to prioritise training and development in order to create opportunities for professional growth of our
employees.
EPMB embarked on several programs to instill a culture of teamwork, achieving common goals and providing the skills and
knowledge required to achieve goals and objectives.
We provided them with the opportunity to express their thoughts and ideas as well as being creative and to think out of
the box.
We created activities to promote a culture of winning and at the same time we gave potential leaders the opportunity to
lead with confidence, the knowledge to work up a strategy and the ability to generate productive results.
Outdoor Teambuilding Activity for Batang Kali Employees
To foster a culture of learning and intellectual growth organisation-wide, an outdoor teambuilding activity was conducted
for employees of all levels from our Batang Kali plant. The purpose of the activity was to inculcate teamwork, a thinking
culture and discipline. Through the various activities that were tailored to our team, the exercise brought positive outcomes
in the development of camaraderie and a spirit of teamwork with discipline among co-workers.

Teambuilding Activity - Outward Bound Training at Pangkor Island
The Company extended its efforts in teambuilding by organising an outward bound training at Pangkor Island. The training
was designed to enhance our employees’ personal development as well as to drive greater productivity. Major focus was
directed at building perseverance, teamwork, discipline and courage.
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Operational Efficiency Programme - Group Level
The Company recognises the importance of operational efficiency and cost competitiveness in achieving its business
objectives and better financial performance. During the year, an Operational Efficiency program was undertaken at the
Group level involving employees from all plants and divisions. Through brainstorming sessions, staffs were encouraged
to contribute valuable ideas and opinions for establishing KPI, suggesting countermeasures for enhancing operational
efficiency, and driving cost reduction. The activities facilitated a thinking culture, teamwork, as well as motivation and
measures in achieving individual and collective targets.

Leadership and Train the Trainer Programme
A Leadership and Train the Trainer Programme was conducted as part of the Company’s human resource development
initiative. Several themes were included in the programme such as Challenging the Individual, Go for the Extraordinary,
Brainstorming, Speed and etc. It was intended to sharpen leadership skills through empowerment and at the same time
establish a performing culture centered on teamwork, a thinking culture and discipline.

Mobile Clinic for Staff Health Screening
We invited Kementerian Kesihatan Klinik Bergerak Selangor to set up a mobile clinic at our
office premise to provide staff with complimentary health screening. About 120 staff took
part in the screening, which was headed by four medical personnel. Areas for screening
included markers for high blood pressure, diabetes, body mass index (BMI), pap smear,
and early detection for breast cancer.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

AS EPMB BEGIN TO EXPAND OUR OPERATIONS ACROSS THE STATES,
WE ARE FURTHER COMMITTED TO PROVIDE SUPPORT, CLOSE
COMMUNICATION, UNDERSTAND THE SOCIAL ISSUES AND DEVELOP
EFFECTIVE AND AFFORDABLE SOLUTIONS.
WE REMAIN CLOSE TO OUR EMPLOYEES, OUR CUSTOMERS AND THE
COMMUNITY IN OUR EFFORTS TO MAINTAIN A SUSTAINABLE HARMONIOUS
RELATIONSHIP AND RESPECT TO THE COMMUNITY.
TRUST AND CONFIDENCE BUILDING
Executive Chairman’s Visits to Subsidiary Plants

Board of Directors’ Visit to the Kedah Plant

The Executive Chairman regularly visits our subsidiary plants
to provide support and guidance to the management team
of each plant. This also provided management personnel
with opportunities to interact personally with the Executive
Chairman.

During the year, the Board of Directors visited the plant
in Kedah. Board members were guided by the person in
charge of plant operations and were briefed on the latest
developments, safety measures and projects in progress.
This enabled the Board members, especially non-executive
Directors, to have a better understanding of plant operations
and to foster closer communication with plant employees
that are based across different states in Malaysia, which in
turn contributed to trust and confidence building.

FOR THE COMMUNITY
Community Futsal Tournament
The Company participated in an Industrial
Futsal Tournament in Melaka with a team of
employees from our Melaka plant participating
in support of the social event organised
in the district of Melaka. The Company’s
social participation in this tournament also
demonstrated its efforts in promoting a habit
for sports and maintaining a relationship
with the local community.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
OVERVIEW STATEMENT
The Board of Directors of EPMB is committed to ensure and
to continue uphold high standard of corporate governance
as an integral part of its business dealings and culture
with the objective of achieving its corporate mission and
enhancing sustainable shareholders’ value.
This statement is prepared in compliance with Main Market
Listing Requirements (MMLR) of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad and it is to be read together with the Corporate
Governance Report 2017 (CG Report) of the Company. The
CG Report provides details of the application of each of
the Practices set out in the Malaysian Code on Corporate
Governance (“MCCG”) during the financial year ended 2017,
which is available on EPMB’s website at www.epmb.com.my.
This overview takes guidance from the three main
principles set out in the MCCG, known as Principle A Board Leadership and Effectiveness, Principle B - Effective
Audit and Risk Management and Principle C - Integrity
in Corporate Reporting and Meaningful Relationship with
Stakeholders.
PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND
EFFECTIVENESS: BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES
Board Responsibilities
The Board recognises the key role in providing stewardship
to the Group’s strategic direction and has assumed their
principal roles and responsibilities in discharging its fiduciary
and leadership functions.
The Executive Chairman and Deputy Executive Chairman
are primarily responsible for the setting of Group’s strategic
direction and orderly and effective conduct of the Board.
Together with the Executive Directors, they are responsible
for the overall operational effectiveness and implementation
of corporate strategies and decisions of the Board.
To assist in the effective discharge of the Board’s stewardship
responsibilities, the Board has established Board Committees,
namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee which are entrusted to oversee
specific Company’s affairs within their respective terms of
reference. The Chairman of the respective Committees will
report to the Board the outcome of the committee meetings
for the Board’s considerations and approvals.

The Board has also worked together with management in
implementing and promoting good corporate governance
culture for the Group.
The Board Charter provides guidance in respect of the
Board’s roles and responsibilities as well as the practices
and procedures to be applied by the Board and its
committees in discharging their functions. The Board will
review and update the Board Charter whenever necessary
and in accordance with any new regulations affecting the
discharging of their responsibilities. The Board Charter
was last revised in November 2017 to be in line with
the practices in the MCCG and to ensure that the good
standards of corporate governance are followed. The Board
Charter can be viewed at the Company’s website at www.
epmb.com.my.
The Directors have full access to the advices and services
of the qualified Company Secretary who is responsible for
ensuring proper conduct of board affairs and compliance
of applicable laws, rules, procedures and regulations. The
Board is regularly updated by the Company Secretary on
changes of statutory or regulatory requirements impacting
the discharging of the Directors’ duties.
The Company Secretary is also responsible in ensuring the
Board meeting procedures are followed and minutes of
meetings are circulated and confirmed as a correct record
by the Board and Board Committees at the following
meeting. The signed and confirmed correct Board and
Board Committees minutes are entered into minutes books
keep in accordance with statutory requirements.
The Board scheduled to meet on quarterly basis with
additional meetings be convened when necessary. An
annual meeting calendar is prepared and circulated to
the Directors before the beginning of each year to ensure
the Directors are able to plan ahead and to ensure their
attendance at those meeting. The Directors are provided
with an agenda and the relevant Board papers issued at
least 5 days from the date of Board Meeting to enable them
to have an overview of matters to be discussed or reviewed
at the meetings.
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The Board met five (5) times during the financial year
ended 31 December 2017, and the attendance record for
each Director is shown below:Name

Attendance

%

Hamidon Bin Abdullah

5/5

100

Zulkefly Bin Baharuddin

5/5

100

Johan Bin Hamidon

4/5

80

Aidan Hamidon

4/5

80

Dr Linden Hamidon

5/5

100

Shaari Bin Haron

5/5

100

Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji
Ismail

4/5

80

Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim

5/5

100

Hew Voon Foo

5/5

100

The Board reviewed and deliberated the businesses set
out in a formal agenda including principal matters on
financial and operational performance, annual budget,
business development and investment plans during the
meetings. All matters discussed and resolutions passed at
the Board meetings are properly recorded in the minutes
of meetings.
The Directors are committed to devote sufficient time
to carry out their duties and responsibilities and have
submitted updates on their other directorships semiannually. All Directors have adequately complied with
the minimum attendance of 50% at Board meeting and
have not exceeded the maximum of five (5) directorship
in public listed company as required under the MMLR of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
The Board is committed to promoting good business
conduct and maintaining a healthy corporate culture
that engenders integrity, transparency and fairness. The
Board, management, employees and other stakeholders
are clear on what is considered acceptable behaviour and
practice in the Company.
The Board has formalised a Code of Conduct (“the
Code”) which is incorporated in the Board Charter, setting
out the standard of conduct expected from Directors,
Senior Management and employees. The Code relies on
principle in relation to honesty, integrity, professionalism,
independence, accountability, responsibility, transparency,
fairness, competence and confidentiality which are embedded
into the Group’s business operations and corporate culture.
The Board has reviewed the Code periodically to ensure
it remains relevant and appropriate. The Code was last
revised in November 2017.
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The Board has also formalised the whistle blowing
procedures which provides an avenue for employees and
other stakeholders to raise genuine concerns of any unethical
behavior, misconduct or non-compliance of policies at the
earliest opportunity. The Company also provides assurance
that the whistle blower will be protected from any retaliation
or adverse impact on his employment or relationship with
the Group, provided that the report is made in good faith
and without malice.
PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND
EFFECTIVENESS: BOARD COMPOSITION
Board Composition
The present Board was made up of nine (9) directors
comprising an Executive Chairman, Deputy Executive
Chairman, two (2) Executive Directors and five (5)
Non-Executive Directors of which four (4) are Independent
Directors. The Board currently has one female Director.
Independent Directors comprise 44% (4 out of 9) of current
Board composition, satisfy the independence test under
Paragraph 15.02 of the MMLR of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad, that a listed issuer must ensure that at least 2
directors or 1/3 of the board of directors of a listed issuer,
whichever is the higher, are independent directors.
The Board noted that the current Board Composition is not
aligned with the desired practice of at least half to comprise
independent directors after the demised of Dato’ Seri Ismail
bin Shahudin. The Board, with the Nomination Committee is
continuously searching suitable candidates to be appointed
as Independent Director of the Company to bring the level
of Independent Director on the Board to a majority level
and achieving MCCG’s requirement of at least half of the
board comprises Independent Directors.
The Board recognises diversity as important criteria to
determine board composition and to ensure that different
perspectives are considered for Board effectiveness. In the
nomination and selection process, specific consideration
is given to the candidate’s skills, knowledge, expertise,
experience, age, culture, background, gender, competencies,
other directorships, time availability and the overall balance
in composition of the Board and in the case of independent
director, his ability to discharge such responsibilities or
functions as expected from an independent director.
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The Nomination Committee met once during the financial
year, performed annual assessment and evaluation on all
individual Directors, Board and Board Committees and
Independent Directors.
The Nomination Committee and Board, through their annual
assessment, reviewed, recommended the retention of Encik
Shaari Bin Haron who has served the Board for more than
twelve (12) years, as Independent Director on the Board,
subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. The Board is of the view that Encik
Shaari continues to fulfill the criteria and definition of an
independent director as set out in the Listing Requirements
and with his extensive experience in legal practice, he is
able to contribute valuable independent professional views
and judgement in board discussion and decision making.
The Board should seek annual shareholders’ approval
through a two-tier voting process in the general meeting to
be held on 25 May 2018.
In accordance with the Company’s Constitution, one-third
(1/3) of the Directors shall retire from office at each Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) but shall be eligible for re-election.
All Directors shall retire at least once in every three years.
A Director appointed during the year shall retire from
office and be eligible for re-election at the next following
AGM after his appointment. This provision is adhered
by the Board in every AGM and information of Directors
standing for re-election is provided in the annual report. The
Nomination Committee also recommended for the Board
to endorse the re-election of the relevant Directors at the
forthcoming AGM.
The Directors are continuously encouraged to attend
continuous education programmes and continuous trainings
to enhance their knowledge and skills and keep abreast with
the changing environment in which the business operates.
During the year, the Directors have attended the following
development programs:-	Advocacy Session on Corporate Disclosure for Directors
and Principal Officers of Listed Issuers
-

Global Treasury & Global Transactions Banking

-

Cyber Risk Awareness Training

-	
Decoding Transaction and Related Party Transaction
Rules and Key Disclosure Obligation of a Listed Company
-

Corporate Governance & Sustainability Microsite

-	
CG Breakfast Series with Directors: “Leading In A
Volatile, Uncertain, Complex, Ambiguous (VUCA) World”
-

(Cont’d)

PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND
EFFECTIVENESS: REMUNERATION
The Remuneration Committee comprises of four (4)
Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee shall develop and establish
with the Board a formal remuneration framework and
recommends to the Board the remuneration package of the
Executive Directors in all forms, drawing outside advice as
necessary. The determination of the remuneration package
for Non-Executive Directors shall be a matter for the board
as a whole. All Directors are provided with Directors’ fees,
which are approved by the shareholders at the AGM, based
on the recommendation of the Board.
The Remuneration Committee aims to ensure that the
remuneration package is robust and effective to link
Executive Directors’ rewards to corporate and individual
performance, to link Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration
to their experience and level of responsibilities undertaken
and link Senior Management’s remuneration to their
performance, experience and level of responsibilities.
During the financial year, the Remuneration Committee met
once to review the remuneration package of Directors and
recommended for Directors’ and shareholders’ approval the
Directors’ Fees from 21st AGM until the conclusion of the
next AGM of the Company.
PRINCIPLE B - EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND
RISK MANAGEMENT: AUDIT COMMITTEE
Audit Committee
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
Director, who is not the Chairman of the Board. The Audit
Committee currently comprises of four (4) members of which
all are Independent Non-Executive Directors, complied with
Paragraph 15.09 of the MMLR of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad. The Company does not have any former key audit
partner being a member of the Audit Committee.
The Company maintained a professional and transparent
relationship with the Auditors, both internal and external, in
seeking their professional advices and ensuring compliance
in matters pertaining to accounting standards, risk
management and internal control. The Audit Committee
was rendered the authority to communicate directly with the
External and Internal Auditors.

Walking Through Contracts the MFRS 15 Way
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The Audit Committee would convene meeting with the
External Auditors, without the presence of Executive
Directors and Management, to discuss any matters of
concern arising from the audit.
PRINCIPLE B - EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND
RISK MANAGEMENT: RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK
Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
a sound system of internal control and risk management.
The Group has established a process to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks which has been integrated and
embedded into the Group operations and is continuously
reviewing its adequacy and effectiveness to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and Group assets.
The Group outsourced its internal audit function to
a professional service provider. The Internal Auditors
conducted independent audit on the departments and
functions within the Group and reported their findings to the
Audit Committee during its quarterly meetings. The Internal
Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee.
The details of the Risk Management Process and Internal
Audit Function and Processes are disclosed in the Statement
on Risk Management and Internal Control of the Company’s
Annual Report.
PRINCIPLE C - INTEGERITY IN
CORPORATE REPORTING MEANINGFUL
RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS:
COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Communication with Stakeholders
The Company recognises the importance of effective
communications and maintaining constructive relationship
with its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders. The
Board practices transparency and accountability by ensuring
timely dissemination of material information relating to the
Group’s business activities, major development and financial
performance via annual reports, quarterly financial results,
announcement to Bursa Malaysia, analyst reports, media
releases, circular to shareholders and corporate website.
The Company is committed to ensure that the communication
and dissemination of material information pertaining to the
Group performance and operations to the shareholders,
stakeholders, regulators, analysts, media and investing public
are timely, accurate, factual, informative and in accordance
with the applicable regulatory and legal requirements.
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Whilst ensuring timely disclosure of information to
its shareholders, the Board is wary of the regulatory
requirements on release of material and price-sensitive
information. Such information will be disclosed to the public
as soon as practicable after due consideration through
Bursa Malaysia announcements or media releases.
The Group’s website at www.epmb.com.my provides
relevant information on the Company to the shareholders
and general public. The website includes among others, a
dedicated section on investor relations where announcement
corporate information, Board Charter, financial statements
and annual reports are made available.
PRINCIPLE C - INTEGERITY IN CORPORATE
REPORTING MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH
STAKEHOLDERS: CONDUCT OF GENERAL MEETINGS
Conduct of General Meeting
General Meetings are important avenues for shareholders
to exercise their rights and to access and engage in
dialogue with the Board and Management. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate and raise their concerns and
to exercise their voting rights on the proposed resolutions.
The outcome of voting on the proposed resolutions will be
announced to the shareholders after the voting process and
released via Bursalink to the public.
The Directors, Chairman of the Board Committees and
Senior Management are also present to provide response if
there are any questions addressed to them. The Chairman
provided sufficient time and appropriate responses on
issues raised. External Auditors also present to provide their
professional and independent advice on relevant issues
raised. Press conferences were held and media releases
were distributed to the media after general meetings.
In facilitating greater shareholder participation, shareholders
are entitled to appoint representative or proxy/proxies to
vote on their behalf in their absence.
The Company AGM to be held on 25 May 2018 and
notice is dated 26 April 2018. The Notice of AGM contain
details of resolutions to be approved by the shareholders
with explanatory notes. In line with the recommendation
of MCCG, the notice of 22 nd AGM was issued to the
shareholders 28 days prior to the AGM date.
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COMMITTEE REPORT
COMPOSITION
The Audit Committee currently comprises of four (4) members of which all are Independent Non-Executive Directors,
complied with Paragraph 15.09 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad:Chairman
Shaari Bin Haron (Senior Independent Non-Executive Director)
Members
Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Hew Voon Foo^ (Independent Non-Executive Director)
^ Member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Audit Committee is governed by its Terms of Reference, a copy of which is available on the Company’s website at
www.epmb.com.my.
MEETINGS
During the financial year, the Audit Committee held five (5) meetings and the details of the members’ attendance are as
follows:Members
Shaari Bin Haron

Attendance

%

5/5

100

Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail

4/5

80

Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim

5/5

100

Hew Voon Foo

5/5

100

The Audit Committee meetings were convened with proper notices and agenda, these were distributed together with
meeting papers and relevant materials to all members before the meeting to facilitate effective deliberation among the
members. Minutes of all Audit Committee meetings were duly recorded and tabled for confirmation at the next Audit
Committee meeting and subsequently presented to the Board for review and notation. The Audit Committee also met with
the External Auditors without presence of executive board members on 29 March 2018.
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES AND WORKS
During the financial year, the following activities and works were undertaken by the Audit Committee, including the
deliberation on and review of:• 	The unaudited quarterly results of the Group together with the announcements, before recommending to the Board for
approval. The review is to ensure that the unaudited quarterly results are in compliance with the Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards as well as the applicable disclosure provision of the
Listing Requirements of the Bursa Malaysia.
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SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES AND WORKS (CONT’D)
• 	The annual audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
together with the Management and External Auditors before Board approval, focusing on compliance with applicable
accounting policies and standards, significant risk areas and the adjustments, estimates and assumptions made in
respect of the financial statements.
• 	The External Auditor’s audit plan and scope, major audit findings, significant risks areas, key audit matters, management
letters together with management’s response.
• 	
The effectiveness of the external audit process and their performance. The Committee will then recommend for the
Board’s approval on re-appointment of the External Auditors and their audit fee. The External Auditors also reported to
the Committee their policies, ethics and systems implemented to maintain independence and objectivity in discharging
their professional responsibilities.
• 	
The scope and coverage of Internal Audit Plan to ensure adequate scope and comprehensive coverage over the
activities of the Group.
• 	The Internal Auditor’s reports which outlined the functions or activities audited, their audit findings, recommendations
towards correcting areas of weaknesses and improvement actions taken by the Management to enhance the internal
control system.
• 	The Internal Auditor’s follow-up reports on previously reported outstanding audit issues to monitor the effectiveness of
improvement actions taken by Management.
• 	The Internal Auditor’s personnel are free from any relationship or conflict of interest.
• 	Recurrent related party transactions entered into by the Group to ascertain as to whether the transactions are carried
out in accordance to the shareholders’ mandate and have been entered into in the normal course of business under
negotiated basis and not detrimental to the interest of the minority shareholders.
• 	The risk register of the Group setting out the risk areas identified and evaluated by the heads of finance and operational
units and the Management and the relevant control actions to manage or mitigate impact of the risks.
• 	The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control, Audit Committee Report, Corporate Governance Overview
Statement and Corporate Governance Report to ensure adherence to regulatory reporting requirements and their
recommendation for the Board’s approval.
INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The internal audit function of the Group is outsourced to an independent professional service provider who reports directly
to the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditors carried out regular and systematic reviews and provided independent and
objective assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control of the operational functions audited. The
Internal Auditors adopt a risk-based audit approach, focusing its audit mainly on key processes and principal risk areas of
the operational units.
During the financial year, the Internal Auditors reviewed and evaluated the internal control environment of various
operating functions within the Group in accordance with the audit plan and communicated their findings together with
recommendations for the Management’s corrective and improvement actions. The Internal Auditors reported to the Audit
Committee on quarterly basis of their audit findings, recommendations, management responses and any follow-up matters
from previous reports. The Internal Auditors also reviewed the procedures relating to recurrent related party transactions.
Total cost incurred for internal audit function for the Group in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to RM42,000.
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMANT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL
INTRODUCTION
Pursuant to Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa
Securities”) and as guided by Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance and Statement on Risk Management and Internal
Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers, the Board of EP Manufacturing Bhd is pleased to include a statement
on the state of the Group’s system of risk management and internal control in this annual report.
BOARD RESPONSIBILITY
The Board recognises the importance of good risk management practices and sound internal controls as a platform for
good corporate governance. The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish and maintain a sound system of risk
management and internal control for the Group and affirms its commitment for reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the
system and the effectiveness of the risk management practices to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the Group’s
assets. The system encompasses policies, processes, activities and practices which are structured to facilitate effective and
efficient operation by enabling it to respond appropriately to significant business, operational, financial and compliance risks
to achieve the Group’s objectives.
The system is designed to manage and minimise rather than to completely eliminate the risk of failure in achieving the
Group’s business objectives. Accordingly, the system can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss or the occurrence of unforeseeable circumstances.
The Board delegates the implementation of the system to the Management Committee who reviews and reports on risks
identified and actions taken to control and mitigate risks.
KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL PROCESS
•	
A functional organisation structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and level of authority to execute the
Group’s strategies and business operations.
•	
Annual budgets for operating subsidiaries are prepared and consolidated at Group level aligned with the Group’s
business direction. The Management meets with the heads of finance and operational units of the Group on a
monthly basis to review financial performance, operational efficiency, quality performance, project development and
risk assessment. During the meetings, the Management reviews and assesses the financial results and operational
performance against budget, analyses significant variances, strategises improvement or corrective actions to reinforce
monitoring controls in line with changes in business and operating conditions.
•	Certain subsidiaries continue to be accredited with ISO/TS 16949:2009 on quality management and ISO 14001:2004 on
environmental management. Such systems are maintained through ongoing internal and surveillance audits to ensure
the systems are adequately implemented and continuously improved. Internal policies and procedures of the systems
are documented and standard operating procedures have been put in place.
•	The Group’s internal auditors perform regular reviews of business processes against internal policies, guidelines and
objectives, identify areas for improvement and assess overall effectiveness and efficiency of internal control systems.
Internal audit reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee at its quarterly meetings.
•	Audit Committee and Board meetings are held quarterly to review quarterly financial results, annual financial statements,
internal audit reports, business planning and development, recurrent related party transactions and any major risks
highlighted by the Management or any other matters reserved for Board consideration.
•	The Board has established a Board Charter which documents the roles and responsibilities, principles and guidelines
to be applied in practice by the Board and its committees.
•	
Significant transactions involving commitment of Group’s assets, acquisition or disposal of assets or business, joint
venture and capital investment are reviewed and approved by the Board. Post implementation reviews are also
conducted and reported to the Board.
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL (Cont’d)
KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL PROCESS (CONT’D)
•	The Group has a Performance Management System with core competencies assessment and leadership indicators to
review and assess employees’ performance and competency.
•	
The Group has an IT Security Policy to ensure that access to information systems and confidential information is
adequately controlled and monitored.
•	In respect of joint ventures entered into by the Group, the representatives from the Group and the representatives from
joint venture partner have regular update to oversee the administration, operation and performance of the joint venture.
Financial reports are provided to joint ventures partner on monthly basis. The Audited Financial Statements are being
furnished to joint venture partner.
•	
The Group will continue foster risk-awareness culture in all decision making and managing all risks in a proactive
and effective manner. This is to enable the Group to respond effectively to the changing business and competitive
environment.
RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS
The Board delegates the responsibility of identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks exposure to the Group to the
Management Committee. The Management Committee, heads of finance and operational units identify the relevant types
of risks and ascertains its root cause and exposure. Each risk is then evaluated and ranked based on its likelihood of
occurrence and the extent of impact on the Group businesses. Control measures and action plans to manage or mitigate
the risks are determined. Current monitoring actions of the risks and its implementation status are reviewed and updated.
These risks are documented and updated in the Risk Register and are reported for review by the Audit Committee and
the Board.
Significant risks arising from factors within the Group or changes in market environment affecting the Group operations
are deliberated and monitored at the operational units and Group’s monthly management meetings. These risks are
continuously managed through efficient planning of resources, enhanced production processes and quality control, business
and customer diversification, continuous research and development and technical collaboration, as well as ongoing human
capital development.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, four (4) internal audit reviews were carried out and follow up status were
reported by the outsourced internal auditors:Audit Period

Reporting in

Name of Entity Audited

Focus Areas

1 Quarter
(January 2017 - March 2017)

May 2017

Peps-JV (Kedah) Sdn. Bhd.

Data Inputs Process for Accounts
Preparation

2nd Quarter
(April 2017 - June 2017)

August 2017

Peps-JV (Kedah) Sdn. Bhd.

Inventory Management

3rd Quarter
(July 2017 - September 2017)

November 2017

Peps-JV (Melaka) Sdn. Bhd.

Data Input Process for Accounts
Preparation

4th Quarter
(October 2017 - December 2017)

February 2018

Peps-JV (Melaka) Sdn. Bhd.

Inventory Management

st

The Board will continue to improve and enhance the existing system of internal control to ensure its adequacy and
relevance in safeguarding the shareholders’ interest and the Group’s assets.
Throughout the years, these on-going internal control and risk management processes have been integrated and embedded
into the Group structure and conduct of business for the achievement of the Group’s objectives and strategies. The Board
will continue to review these processes to ensure adequacy and effectiveness of the system.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The Group outsources its internal audit function to a professional service provider as part of its efforts in ensuring that
the Group’s system of internal controls are adequate and effective. The internal auditors review and evaluate the adequacy
and integrity of the internal control system and risk management within the Group and report to the Audit Committee. The
internal auditors provide independent advisory services and reasonable assurance of the orderly and effective conduct of
the operations of the Group.
The internal auditors are free from any relationships or conflict of interest, which could impair their objectivity and
independence of the internal audit function. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the internal audit function is able
to function independently.
The internal auditors review the various business processes, identify risks and internal control gaps, assess the state of
control of the selected key functions and recommend improvement measures to the internal control process. Follow-up
audits are also carried out to ensure weaknesses identified have been rectified and improvement or corrective actions have
been or are being carried out. Audit plan setting out the audit coverage and scope of work and the quarterly audit reports
are tabled for adoption and reviewed by the Audit Committee and Board.
REVIEW OF THIS STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITOR
Pursuant to paragraph 15.23 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, the external auditors have
reviewed the SORMIC pursuant to the scope set out in the Audit and Assurance Practice Guide (“AAPG”) 3 issued by the
MIA for inclusion in the 2017 Annual Report, and reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes
them to believe that the SORMIC is not prepared, in all material aspects, in accordance with the disclosures required by
paragraphs 41 and 42 of the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers,
nor is the SORMIC factually inaccurate. AAPG 3 does not require the external auditors to consider whether the SORMIC
covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system including the assessment and opinion by the Board and management thereon. The external
auditors are also not required to consider whether the processes described to deal with material internal control aspects
of any significant problems disclosed in the annual report will, in fact, remedy the problems.
CONCLUSION
The Board is satisfied that the existing level of system of internal control and risk management of the Group is adequate
and properly implemented and there are no significant weaknesses in the system that may have a material adverse impact
on the Group’s operations. The Board and the management will continue to take necessary measures to strengthen and
enhance the Group’s system in line with the evolving business development to meet the corporate objectives.
The Board has received assurance from the Executive Chairman and the Management Committee that the Group’s
risk management and internal control is operating adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, based on the risk
management and internal control system of the Group.
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ADDITIONAL
COMPLIANCE INFORMATION
1.

Utilisation of Proceeds
There were no proceeds raised by the Company from any corporate proposals during the financial year.

2.

Share Buy-backs

	During the financial year, the Company bought back a total of 161,300 of its ordinary shares from open market, the
detail of which are as follows:-

Month
2017

No of shares
purchased

Minimum
price
(RM)

Maximum
price
(RM)

Average cost
per share
(RM)

Total
Consideration
(RM)

March

15,000

0.530

0.540

0.533

8,000

September

39,900

0.520

0.540

0.530

21,146

December

106,400

0.465

0.510

0.488

51,910

	
As at 31 December 2017, a total of 7,035,300 ordinary shares were bought back and all the shares purchased were
retained as treasury shares in accordance with Section 127 of the Companies Act 2016. None of the treasury shares
were resold or cancelled during the financial year.
3.

Audit and Non-audit fees

	The audit and non-audit fees paid or payable to the External Auditors and its affiliate by the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017 are as follows:
Company
(RM‘000)

Group
(RM‘000)

Statutory audit fees paid/payable to:
- KPMG

90

378

Total (a)

90

378

Non-audit fees paid/payable to:
- KPMG
- Affiliate of KPMG

20
11

20
457

Total (b)

31

477

34%

126%

% of non-audit fees (b/a)

	The amount of non-audit fees paid and payable to External Auditors and its affiliate during the financial year ended
31 December 2017 comprised of advisory and tax services.
4.

Material Contracts

	There were no material contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business) entered into by
the Company and/or its subsidiaries, involving Directors’ and Major Shareholders’ interests during the financial year.
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5.

(Cont’d)

Recurrent Related Party Transactions

	Details of recurrent related party transactions entered into by the Group during the financial year ended 31 December
2017 are as follows:-

Related Party

EP Manufacturing Bhd
and/or its
subsidiaries

Nature of transactions with
related party

Aggregate value
of transactions
for financial year
ended 31/12/2017
(RM’000)

Companies in which the major
shareholder and Directors of the
Company, Hamidon Bin Abdullah,
Dr Linden Hamidon, Johan Bin
Hamidon and Aidan Hamidon are
deemed to have interests:1)	KB Teknik Sdn. Bhd.
(“KBT”)

Fundwin Sdn. Bhd.
(“Fundwin”)

Sales of automotive parts to Fundwin

2)	Pesaka Nuri (M) Sdn. Bhd.
(“Pesaka”)

Peps-JV (M) Sdn. Bhd.
(“Peps-JV”)

Sales of automotive parts to
Peps-JV

469
35,201

Rental of property from Peps-JV

297

EP Manufacturing Bhd
(“EPMB”)

Rental of property from EPMB

148

Fundwin

Sales of automotive parts to
Fundwin

3)	Twin Ridge Sdn. Bhd.
(“TRSB”)

EPMB

Rental of property from EPMB

260

4) 	Nadayu Murni Sdn. Bhd.
(“NMSB”)

EPMB

Rental of property from EPMB

301

34

37

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
39

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

44 	STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
45 	STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
47 	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
48 	STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
49

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

51 	NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
104

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

104

STATUTORY DECLARATION

105 	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The Directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding activities whilst the principal activities of the subsidiaries are as
stated in Note 5 to the financial statements. There has been no significant change in the nature of these activities during
the financial year.
SUBSIDIARIES
The details of the Company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.
RESULTS
						 Group
						 RM’000

Company
RM’000

(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company 			
Non-controlling interests 			

(29,942)
(2)

7,857
-

(Loss)/Profit for the year			

(29,944)

7,857

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year under review except for the
transfer of RM14,069,000 from the share premium account to the share capital account as disclosed in Note 13 to the
financial statements.
DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid since the end of the previous financial year and the Directors do not recommend any final dividend
to be paid for the financial year under review.
DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
Directors who served during the financial year until the date of this report are:
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Shaari Bin Haron
Dr. Linden Hamidon
Hew Voon Foo
Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim
Johan Bin Hamidon
Aidan Hamidon
Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail
Zulkefly Bin Baharuddin

39

EP MANUFACTURING BHD ( 390116-T )

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Cont’d)
DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY (CONT’D)

PT Tirta Serang Madani
(i)
(ii)

√

Zulkefly Bin
Baharuddin

√

Adamsyah Fieter
Nelson Tarigan

√
√

√

Mohamad Jahiz
Bin Ikmal Hijaz

√

Aidan Hamidon

Johan Bin
Hamidon

Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz
Bin Hashim

√

√
√(i)
√
√(i)
√
√

Ong Tsuey Yun

√
√
√
√(ii)
√
√
√(ii)
√

Mohd Nizam Bin
Mohamed

Peps-JV (M) Sdn. Bhd.
Peps-JV (Melaka) Sdn. Bhd.
EP Polymers (M) Sdn. Bhd.
Fundwin Sdn. Bhd.
Peps-JV (Kedah) Sdn. Bhd.
Advance Product Systems Sdn. Bhd.
EP Moulds & Dies (M) Sdn. Bhd.
Peps-JV (Gurun) Sdn. Bhd.
PT EP Metering & Services

Dr. Linden
Hamidon

Subsidiaries

Hamidon Bin
Abdullah

The Directors who held office in the subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year and up to the date of this
report are:

√

√

√

√

√
√

√

√
√

√

√

appointed on 21 June 2017
appointed on 18 August 2017

The information required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 253 of the Companies Act 2016 is deemed incorporated herein
by such reference to the financial statements of the respective subsidiaries and made a part hereof.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
The interests and deemed interests in the ordinary shares of the Company and of its related corporations (other than
wholly-owned subsidiaries) of those who were Directors at the financial year end (including the interests of the spouses
or children of the Directors who themselves are not Directors of the Company) as recorded in the Register of Directors’
Shareholdings are as follows:
				
				

Number of ordinary shares
At			
At
1.1.2017
Bought
Sold
31.12.2017

Company
Direct interest in the Company
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Dr. Linden Hamidon
Shaari Bin Haron
Indirect interest in the Company
Hamidon Bin Abdullah*

40

8,447,133
1,329,384
20,000

-

-

8,447,133
1,329,384
20,000

65,218,833

-

-

65,218,833
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Cont’d)
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (CONT’D)
				
				

Number of ordinary shares of USD1.00 each
At			
At
1.1.2017
Bought
Sold
31.12.2017

Subsidiaries
PT EP Metering & Services
Indirect interest in subsidiary
Hamidon Bin Abdullah

315,000

				
				
PT Tirta Serang Madani
Indirect interest in subsidiary
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
*

-

-

315,000

Number of ordinary shares of Rp1,000,000 each
At			
At
1.1.2017
Bought
Sold
31.12.2017

900

-

-

900

Indirect interest by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Mutual Concept Sdn. Bhd. and EP Properties (M) Sdn.
Bhd., the registered owners of the shares of the Company.

By virtue of his interests in the shares of the Company, the above Directors are also deemed interested in the shares of
the subsidiaries during the financial year to the extent that the Company has an interest.
None of the other Directors holding office at 31 December 2017 had any interest in the ordinary shares of the Company
and its related corporations during the financial year.
DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received nor become entitled to receive any
benefit (other than those fees and other benefits included in the aggregate amount of remunerations received or due and
receivable by Directors as shown in the financial statements or the fixed salary of a full time employee of the Company or
of related corporations) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a
firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest, other
than certain Directors who have substantial financial interests in companies which traded with certain companies in the
Group in the ordinary course of business as disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements.
There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year which had the object of enabling Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.
ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
There were no changes in the issued and paid-up capital of the Company during the financial year except for the transfer
of RM14,069,000 from the share premium account to the share capital account as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial
statements. There were no debentures issued during the financial year.
OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES
No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year.

41

EP MANUFACTURING BHD ( 390116-T )

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE COST
The following disclosure on particulars of indemnity given to, or insurance effected for, any Director or officer of the
Company is made pursuant to Section 289(7) of the Companies Act 2016:
						 Amount
						
paid
						
RM
Directors and Officers Liability Insurance			

14,585

Sum
insured
RM
5,000,000

There were no indemnity given to, or insurance effected for auditors of the Company during the financial year.
OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to
ascertain that:
i)

all known bad debts have been written off and adequate provision made for doubtful debts, and

ii)	any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business have been written down to
an amount which they might be expected so to realise.
At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:
i)	that would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in the Group
and in the Company inadequate to any substantial extent, or
ii)	
that would render the value attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company misleading, or
iii)	which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and
of the Company misleading or inappropriate, or
iv)	not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements that would render any amount stated in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.
At the date of this report, there does not exist:
i)	
any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year and
which secures the liabilities of any other person, or
ii)

any contingent liability in respect of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year.

No contingent liability or other liability of any company in the Group has become enforceable, or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or
may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.
In the opinion of the Directors, except for the inventories written off of RM10,108,000 as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial
statements, the financial performance of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature nor has any such
item, transaction or event occurred in the interval between the end of that financial year and the date of this report.
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AUDITORS
The auditors, KPMG PLT, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.
The auditors’ remuneration is disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

…………………………………………………………
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Director

…………………………………………………………
Aidan Hamidon
Director
Shah Alam, Malaysia
Date: 29 March 2018
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
Group
				
Note
					

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

Assets							
Property, plant and equipment
3
401,009
413,793
1,331
207
Investment properties
4
14,417
47,040
45,211
Investments in subsidiaries
5
210,429
206,929
Investment in a joint venture
6
1,015
327
Intangible assets
7
89,258
90,004
Deferred tax assets
8
2,095
2,365
Total non-current assets		

507,794

506,489

258,800

252,347

53,985
110,671
3,488
3,733
1,363
18,027

42,021
96,825
5,152
4,137
3,889
40,299

15,565
29
166
259

23,453
18
243
2,766

Total current assets		

191,267

192,323

16,019

26,480

Total assets		

699,061

698,812

274,819

278,827

Equity			
Share capital
Reserves		

180,029
110,524

165,960
153,631

180,029
32,125

165,960
38,418

Equity attributable to owners of the Company		
290,553
Non-controlling interests		
(504)

319,591
(502)

212,154
-

204,378
-

Total equity		

290,049

319,089

212,154

204,378

86,373
2,951
4,145

82,134
3,141
4,555

4,145

3,945

93,469

89,830

4,145

3,945

190,616
330
5,619
1,282
117,696

198,661
541
650
90,041

58,520

70,504

Total current liabilities		

315,543

289,893

58,520

70,504

Total liabilities		

409,012

379,723

62,665

74,449

Total equity and liabilities		

699,061

698,812

274,819

278,827

Inventories		
9
Trade and other receivables
10
Prepayments and other assets		
Current tax assets		
Other investments
11
Cash and cash equivalents
12

Liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Deferred income
Deferred tax liabilities

13
13

14
15
8

Total non-current liabilities		
Loans and borrowings
14
Deferred income
15
Current tax liabilities		
Provision for warranties
16
Trade and other payables
17

The notes on pages 51 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.
44

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
Group
				
Note
					

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

sales		
471,532
dividend income		
rental income		
709
management fees		
-

435,375
148
-

10,000
1,827
643

20,000
1,318
578

472,241
(427,810)

435,523
(386,751)

12,470
-

21,896
-

Gross profit			
44,431
Other income			
4,963
Distribution expenses		
(7,812)
Administrative expenses		
(43,870)
Other expenses		 (2,836)

48,772
5,566
(8,557)
(38,735)
(7,073)

12,470
(3,053)
(6)

21,896
10
(2,395)
(8)

(5,124)

(27)

9,411

19,503

Finance costs		
18
(13,355)
Finance income		
321

(14,056)
363

(1,681)
560

(2,417)
738

Net finance costs		

(13,034)

(13,693)

(1,121)

(1,679)

Share of profit of equity-accounted joint venture, net of tax 		

1,235

327

-

-

(16,923)
(13,021)

(13,393)
(3,905)

8,290
(433)

17,824
(178)

(29,944)

(17,298)

7,857

17,646

Revenue 		
		
		
-

					
Cost of sales			

Results from operating activities

(Loss)/Profit before tax
Tax expense		

19
20

(Loss)/Profit for the year 		
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Group
				
Note
					

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Other comprehensive expense, net of tax
Item that is or may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign
operations			

-

(2)

-

-

Other comprehensive expense for the year,
net of tax			

-

(2)

-

-

Total comprehensive (expense)/income for
the year			

(29,944)

(17,300)

7,857

17,646

(Loss)/Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company		
Non-controlling interests		

(29,942)
(2)

(17,315)
17

7,857
-

17,646
-

(Loss)/Profit for the year		

(29,944)

(17,298)

7,857

17,646

Total comprehensive (expense)/income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company		
(29,942)
Non-controlling interests		
(2)

(17,317)
17

7,857
-

17,646
-

Total comprehensive (expense)/income
for the year		

(29,944)

(17,300)

7,857

17,646

(18.8)

(10.9)

Basic loss per ordinary share (sen)

22

The notes on pages 51 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.
46

-

-

985
-

-

-

(985)

(2)
-

(2)
-

(983)

(4,730)

-

(81)

-

-

(4,649)

(92)

-

(4,557)

115,254

-

-

(29,942)

(29,942)

145,196

(17,315)
(796)
-

(17,315)

163,307

The notes on pages 51 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.

/----------------------------------Note 13-----------------------------------/

-

(14,069)

14,069
180,029

-

-

At 31 December 2017		

-

-

Total comprehensive expense for the year		
Realisation of translation reserve on
deregistration of a subsidiary		
Repurchase of own shares
13
Transfer in accordance with Section 618(2)
of the Companies Act 2016
13

-

-

14,069

Loss for the year		

165,960

-

Total comprehensive (expense)/income
for the year		
Dividends to owners of the Company
23
Repurchase of own shares
13

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017		

-

-

14,069

165,960

At 1 January 2016		
Foreign currency translation
differences for foreign operations		
Loss for the year		

Group

290,553

-

985
(81)

(29,942)

(29,942)

319,591

(17,317)
(796)
(92)

(2)
(17,315)

337,796

(504)

-

-

(2)

(2)

(502)

17
-

17

(519)

/-------------------- Attributable to owners of the Company ------------------- /
/----------------- Non-distributable -----------------/ Distributable
											
Non				
Share
Share Translation
Treasury
Retained		 controlling
				
Note
capital
premium
reserve
shares
earnings
Total
interests
				
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

290,049

-

985
(81)

(29,944)

(29,944)

319,089

(17,300)
(796)
(92)

(2)
(17,298)

337,277

Total
equity
RM’000

CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT
OF
CHANGES
IN
EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
					 /-----------Attributable to owners of the Company------------/
					
/-----------Non-distributable---------/ Distributable
						
Share
Share
Treasury
Retained
Total
				
Note		
capital
premium
shares
earnings
equity
						 RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Company
At 1 January 2016			
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year			
Dividends to owners of the Company
23		
Repurchase of own shares
13		

165,960

14,069

(4,557)

12,148

187,620

-

-

(92)

17,646
(796)
-

17,646
(796)
(92)

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017			
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year			
Repurchase of own shares
13		
Transfer in accordance with Section 618(2)
of the Companies Act 2016
13		

165,960

14,069

(4,649)

28,998

204,378

-

-

(81)

7,857
-

7,857
(81)

14,069

(14,069)

-

-

-

At 31 December 2017			

180,029

-

(4,730)

36,855

212,154

				

/--------------------------Note 13-----------------------/

The notes on pages 51 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Group
				
Note
					
Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/Profit before tax		
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of government grant
15
Amortisation of intangible assets
7
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
3
Depreciation of investment properties
4
Dividend income		
Finance costs
18
Finance income
19
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment		
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
3
Impairment loss on trade and other receivable
19
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary
19
Net inventories written off
9
Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss
19
Provision for warranties
16
Share of profit of equity-accounted joint venture,
net of tax		

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

(16,923)

(13,393)

8,290

17,824

(401)
2,116
63,500
13,355
(321)
42
985
9,713
(2,229)
1,694

(1,642)
1,865
70,848
14,056
(363)
(25)
3,408
2,348
2,103
882

233
622
(10,000)
1,681
(560)
-

107
539
(20,000)
2,417
(738)
-

(1,235)

(327)

-

-

70,296

79,760

266

149

Operating profit before changes in working capital		
Changes in working capital:
Inventories			
Trade and other receivables, prepayments and
other assets		
Trade and other payables		
Deferred income		

(21,677)

(2,662)

-

-

(12,224)
28,307
-

14,752
9,043
1,806

7,877
(5,484)
-

8,154
(3,102)
-

Cash generated from operations		
Interest paid			
Income taxes paid		
Warranties paid
16

64,702
(7,911)
(7,138)
(1,062)

102,699
(8,304)
(9,040)
(1,001)

2,659
(1,681)
(156)
-

5,201
(2,417)
-

Net cash from operating activities		

48,591

84,354

822

2,784

(2,451)
(1,357)
560

(7)
738

-

-

(3,248)

731

Cash flows from investing activities		
Acquisition of intangible assets
7
(1,327)
(2,284)
Acquisition of investment properties
4
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(ii)
(65,176)
(77,825)
Decrease in other investment 		
2,526
Dividend received from a joint venture
6
607
Increase in pledged deposits with licensed banks		
(66)
(838)
Increase in investment in a joint venture
6
(60)
Interest received		
321
363
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment			
39
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities		

(63,175)

(80,545)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Cont’d)
Group

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

				
Note
					

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to owners of the Company
23
Interest paid		
Net drawdown of loans and borrowings
14
Repayment of finance lease liabilities
14
Repurchase of treasury shares		

(5,444)
9,119
(11,754)
(81)

(1,592)
(5,752)
5,948
(983)
(92)

(81)

(1,592)
(92)

(8,160)

(2,471)

(81)

(1,684)

(22,744)
28,289

1,338
(2)
26,953

(2,507)
2,766

1,831
935

5,545

28,289

259

2,766

Net cash used in financing activities		
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 		
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
(i)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

(i)

Notes to the statements of cash flows
(i)

Cash and cash equivalents

	
Cash and cash equivalents included in the statements of cash flows comprise the following statements of financial
position amounts:
Group
				
Note
					

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

2,900
15,127

5,551
34,748

259

1,008
1,758

					
Less: Pledged deposits
12
Less: Bank overdraft
14

18,027
(2,381)
(10,101)

40,299
(2,315)
(9,695)

259
-

2,766
-

					

5,545

28,289

259

2,766

	Deposits placed with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

(ii)

12
12

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
During the financial year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of RM65,176,000
(2016: RM96,338,000), of which none (2016: RM18,513,000) was acquired by means of finance lease arrangements.

The notes on pages 51 to 103 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EP Manufacturing Bhd is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is listed on the
Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The address of the principal place of business and registered office is
as follows:
Principal place of business/Registered office
No. 8 & 10, Jalan Jurutera U1/23,
Seksyen U1,
Kawasan Perindustrian Hicom Glenmarie,
40150 Shah Alam,
Selangor Darul Ehsan.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group” and individually referred to as “Group entities”)
and the Group’s interest in joint venture. The financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial year ended
31 December 2017 do not include other entities.
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding activities whilst the principal activities of the Group entities are
as stated in Note 5 to the financial statements.
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2018.
1.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a)

Statement of compliance

		
The financial statements of the Group and the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
		The following are accounting standards, amendments and interpretations of the MFRSs that have been issued by
the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but have not been adopted by the Group and the Company:
		MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
		•

MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014)

		•

MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

		

•

Clarifications to MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

		

•

IC Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

		

•	Amendments to MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (Annual Improvements
to MFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle)

		

•	Amendments to MFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

		

•	
Amendments to MFRS 4, Insurance Contracts - Applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments with MFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

		

•	
Amendments to MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Annual Improvements to MFRS
Standards 2014-2016 Cycle)

		

•

Amendments to MFRS 140, Investment Property - Transfers of Investment Property
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1.

(Cont’d)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
(a)

Statement of compliance (cont’d)

		MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
		•

MFRS 16, Leases

		

•

IC Interpretation 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

		

•	Amendments to MFRS 3, Business Combinations (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

		

•

Amendments to MFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

		

•

Amendments to MFRS 11, Joint Arrangements (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

		

•

Amendments to MFRS 112, Income Taxes (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

		

•

Amendments to MFRS 119, Employee Benefits (Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement)

		

•

Amendments to MFRS 123, Borrowing Costs (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

		

•	Amendments to MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

		
MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
		•

MFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

		
MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date yet to
be confirmed
		•	Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
		
The Group and the Company plan to apply the abovementioned accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations:
		

•	
from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2018 for those accounting standards, amendments and
interpretation that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, except for
Amendments to MFRS 1, Amendments to MFRS 2 and Amendments to MFRS 4 which are not applicable to
the Group and the Company.

		

•	
from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2019 for those accounting standards, amendments and
interpretation that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

		The Group and the Company do not plan to apply MFRS 17, Insurance Contracts as it is not applicable to the
Group and the Company.
		
The initial application of the accounting standards, amendments or interpretations are not expected to have
any material financial impacts to the current period and prior period financial statements of the Group and the
Company except as mentioned below:
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1.

(Cont’d)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
(a)

Statement of compliance (cont’d)

		(i)

MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

			MFRS 15 replaces the guidance in MFRS 111, Construction Contracts, MFRS 118, Revenue, IC Interpretation
13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, IC Interpretation 15, Agreements for Construction of Real Estate, IC
Interpretation 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers and IC Interpretation 131, Revenue - Barter Transactions
Involving Advertising Services.
			
The Group has established a team to manage the implementation of MFRS 15. Following the adoption of
the MFRS 15, the team reviewed the contracts with the customers to account for the financial impact of the
adoption of the new standard.
			
Currently, the Group’s contract with customers contain several components other than sale of automotive
parts. Upon adoption of MFRS 15, it may result in the goods and services being unbundled from others in a
contract and are accounted for separately. Nevertheless, the Group has assessed that the initial application
of MFRS 15 on its financial statements will have no material impact to the financial statements.
		(ii)

MFRS 9, Financial Instruments

			
MFRS 9 replaces the guidance in MFRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement on the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, and on hedge accounting.
			MFRS 9 contains a new classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business
model in which assets are managed and their cash flow characteristics. The new standard contains three
principal categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), and eliminates the existing MFRS 139 categories
of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale.
			
The Group and the Company do not expect that the application of the new classification requirement will
have a material impact on classification for its financial assets.
			MFRS 9 also replaces the incurred loss model in MFRS 139 with a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL)
model. Under MFRS 9, loss allowances will be measured on either 12-month ECLs or lifetime ECLs.
			The Group and the Company do not expect that the application of the forward-looking expected credit loss
(ECL) model will have a material impact on impairment for its financial assets.
		(iii) MFRS 16, Leases
			
MFRS 16 replaces the guidance in MFRS 117, Leases, IC Interpretation 4, Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, IC Interpretation 115, Operating Leases - Incentives and IC Interpretation 127,
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
			
MFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its
obligations to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard which continues to be classified
as finance or operating lease.
			The Group and the Company are currently assessing the financial impact that may arise from the adoption
of MFRS 16.
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1.

(Cont’d)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
(b)

Basis of measurement

		The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis on the assumption that the Group and
the Company are going concern.
		
As at 31 December 2017, the Group and the Company have net current liabilities of RM124,276,000 and
RM42,501,000 respectively and the Group’s net loss for the year was RM29,944,000. The preparation of the
financial statements on a going concern basis is dependent on the ability of the Group and Company to
generate sufficient cash flows from their operations, obtaining support from their bankers and creditors to finance
their operations and achieving profitable operations. The Group remains positive that it will be able to generate
sufficient cash flows from its operations as the subsidiaries have been awarded with new projects. In view of the
foregoing, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statement on a going concern basis
and the Group and the Company will be able to meet their liabilities as and when they fall due.
		Accordingly, the financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification
of recorded asset amounts or additional amounts of liabilities that may be necessary if the Group and the
Company are unable to continue as a going concern.
(c)

Functional and presentation currency

		
These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Group’s and the Company’s
functional currency. All financial information is presented in RM and has been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise stated.
(d)

Use of estimates and judgements

		The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
		Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
		
There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies
that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements other than those disclosed in
the following notes:
		
		

54

•
•

Note 7 - Intangible assets
Note 16 - Provision for warranties

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.

(Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these financial
statements and have been applied consistently by Group entities, unless otherwise stated.
(a)

Basis of consolidation

		(i)

Subsidiaries

			Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by the Company. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases.
			The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Potential voting rights
are considered when assessing control only when such rights are substantive. The Group also considers it
has de facto power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has the current
ability to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s return.
			Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less any
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of investments
includes transaction costs.
		(ii)

Business combinations

			
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method from the acquisition date, which is
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
			

For new acquisitions, the Group measures the cost of goodwill at the acquisition date as:

			
			
			
			

•
the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
•
the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
•	
if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the
acquiree; less
•
the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

			

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

			
For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date.
			
Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group
incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.
		(iii) Acquisitions of non-controlling interests
			The Group accounts for all changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control as equity transactions between the Group and its non-controlling interest holders. Any difference
between the Group’s share of net assets before and after the changes, and any consideration received or
paid, is adjusted to or against Group reserves.
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2.

(Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(a)

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

		(iv) Loss of control
			
Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the former
subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the former subsidiary
from the consolidated statement of financial position. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control
is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the former subsidiary, then such interest
is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity
accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.
		(v)

Joint arrangements

			Joint arrangements are arrangements of which the Group has joint control, established by contracts requiring
unanimous consent for decisions about the activities that significantly affect the arrangements’ returns.
			

Joint arrangements are classified and accounted for as follows:

			

•	A joint arrangement is classified as “joint operation” when the Group or the Company has rights to the
assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to an arrangement. The Group accounts for each of its
shares of the assets, liabilities and transactions, including its share of those held or incurred jointly with
the other investors, in relation to the joint operation.

			

•	
A joint arrangement is classified as “joint venture” when the Group has rights only to the net assets
of the arrangements. The Group accounts for its interest in the joint venture using the equity method.
Investments in joint venture are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less
any impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sales or distribution. The cost of
investment includes transaction costs.

		(vi) Non-controlling interests
			Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the equity holders of the Company, are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position and statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group is presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the profit or loss and the
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests and owners of the Company.
			Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests
even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.
		(vii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation
			
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
			
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with joint ventures are eliminated against the investment to
the extent of the Group’s interests in the investees. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
(b)

Affiliated companies

		Affiliated companies are companies in which certain Directors of the Group have interests or are also Directors of
those companies.
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2.

(Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(c)

		

Foreign currency
(i)

Foreign currency transactions

			Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
			
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.
			Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are not retranslated at the end of the
reporting date, except for those that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
			

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.

			In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to
a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains
and losses arising from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign
operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income, and are presented in the foreign currency
translation reserve (“FCTR”) in equity.
(ii)

Operations denominated in functional currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia

			The assets and liabilities of operations denominated in functional currencies other than RM, including goodwill
and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to RM at exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period, except for goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from business combinations before
1 January 2011 (the date when the Group first adopted MFRS) which are treated as assets and liabilities of
the Company. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to RM at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.
			Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the FCTR in
equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly owned subsidiary, then the relevant proportionate share of
the translation difference is allocated to the non-controlling interests. When a foreign operation is disposed
of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the FCTR related
to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
			
When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. When the Group
disposes of only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture that includes a foreign operation while
retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified
to profit or loss.
(d)
		

Financial instruments
(i)

Initial recognition and measurement

			
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Group or the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
			A financial instrument is recognised initially, at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
the financial instrument.
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2.

(Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(d)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

		(ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement

			

The Group and the Company categorise financial instruments as follows:

			Financial assets
			Loans and receivables
			

Loans and receivables category comprises debt instruments that are not quoted in an active market.

			
Financial assets categorised as loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
			

All financial assets are subject to review for impairment (see Note 2(k)(i)).

			Financial liabilities
			

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

		(iii) Financial guarantee contracts
			A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
			
Fair value arising from financial guarantee contracts are classified as deferred income and is amortised
to profit or loss using a straight-line method over the contractual period or, when there is no specified
contractual period, recognised in profit or loss upon discharge of the guarantee. When settlement of a
financial guarantee contract becomes probable, an estimate of the obligation is made. If the carrying value of
the financial guarantee contract is lower than the obligation, the carrying value is adjusted to the obligation
amount and accounted for as a provision.
		(iv) Derecognition
			A financial asset or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire or control of the asset is not retained or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred to another party. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received (including any
new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
			
A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

(Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(e)

		

Property, plant and equipment
(i)

Recognition and measurement

			
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
			
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use, and the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. The cost of selfconstructed assets also includes the cost of materials and direct labour. For qualifying assets, borrowing
costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs.
			Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.
			
When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
			The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is recognised net
within “other income” and “other expenses” respectively in profit or loss.
		(ii)

Subsequent costs

			The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the component will
flow to the Group or the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced component is derecognised to profit or loss. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant
and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
		(iii) Depreciation
			
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual
assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset,
then that component is depreciated separately.
			
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of property, plant and equipment from the date that they are available for use. Leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated. Property,
plant and equipment under construction (capital work-in-progress) are not depreciated until the assets are
ready for their intended use.
			

The annual depreciation rates for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

			Buildings			
			Renovation		
10%
			
Equipment, furniture and fittings		 8%
			
Plant and machineries		 10%
			Solar			
			
Motor vehicles		 16%

2%
- 20%
- 40%
- 34%
5%
- 20%

			
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at end of the reporting period, and
adjusted as appropriate.
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(Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(f)

Leased assets

		(i)

Finance lease

			
Leases in terms of which the Group or the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an
amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to
that asset.
			Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent
lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the
lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.
		(ii)

Operating lease

			
Leases, where the Group or the Company does not assume substantially all the risks and rewards of the
ownership are classified as operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised in the statement of
financial position.
			Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total lease
expense, over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the reporting period
in which they are incurred.
(g)

Intangible assets

		(i)

Goodwill

			

Goodwill arises on business combinations is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

		(ii)

Research and development

			
Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
			
Expenditure on development activities, whereby the application of research findings are applied to a plan
or design for the production of new or substantially improved products and processes, is capitalised only if
development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible,
future economic benefits are probable and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete
development and to use or sell the asset.
			The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and overheads costs that are directly
attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised
in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.
			Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
		

(iii) Other intangible assets

			
Intangible assets, other than goodwill, that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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2.

(Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(g)

Intangible assets (cont’d)

		(iv) Subsequent expenditure
			Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill
is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
		(v)

Amortisation

			
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but are tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
			Other intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use. Amortisation is based on the
cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets.
			

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

			

•

Capitalised development costs							 3 - 5 years

			Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted, if appropriate.
(h)
		

Investment properties
(i)

Investment properties carried at cost

			Investment properties are properties which are owned to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Properties that are occupied by the companies in the Group are accounted
for as owner-occupied rather than investment properties.
			
Investment properties initially and subsequently measured at cost are accounted for similarly to property,
plant and equipment.
		(ii)

Determination of fair value

			
The Directors estimate the fair values of the Company’s investment properties without involvement of
independent valuers. The fair values are based on best available market values, being the estimated amount
for which a property could be exchanged between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably.
(i)
		

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

		
The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted average method, and includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing
location and condition. In the case of work-in-progress and finished goods, cost includes an appropriate share of
production overheads based on normal operating capacity.
		Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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(Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(j)

Cash and cash equivalents

		Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks which have an insignificant
risk of changes in fair value with original maturities of three months or less, and are used by the Group and the
Company in the management of their short term commitments. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents are presented net of pledged deposits.
(k)

Impairment

		(i)

Financial assets

			All financial assets (except for investments in subsidiaries and investment in a joint venture) are assessed at
each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
having an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. Losses expected as a result of future
events, no matter how likely, are not recognised. For an investment in an equity instrument, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is an objective evidence of impairment. If any such objective
evidence exists, then the impairment loss of the financial asset is estimated.
			An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is recognised in profit or loss and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account.
			An impairment loss in respect of unquoted equity instrument that is carried at cost is recognised in profit or
loss and is measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
			If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss
is reversed, to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed what the carrying amount would
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
		(ii)

Other assets

			The carrying amounts of other assets (except for inventories and deferred tax asset) are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each period
at the same time.
			
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets
or cash-generating units. Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the purpose of goodwill impairment
testing, cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at
which impairment testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
reporting purposes. The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing,
is allocated to a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.
			
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.
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2.

(Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(k)

Impairment (cont’d)

		(ii)

Other assets (cont’d)

			
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
			Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the cashgenerating unit (groups of cash-generating units) on a pro rata basis.
			
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses
recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. An impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the financial year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(l) Equity instruments
		

Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial recognition and are not remeasured subsequently.

		(i)

Issue expenses

			Costs directly attributable to the issue of instruments classified as equity are recognised as a deduction from
equity.
		(ii)

Ordinary shares

			

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

		

(iii) Repurchase, disposal and reissue of share capital (treasury shares)

			
When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, including
directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares
that are not subsequently cancelled are classified as treasury shares in the statement of changes in equity.
			When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the difference between the sales consideration net
of directly attributable costs and the carrying amount of the treasury shares is recognised in equity.
(m) Employee benefits
		

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

			Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and sick
leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.
			A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing
plans if the Group and the Company have a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as
a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
		(ii)

State plans

			The Group’s and the Company’s contributions to statutory pension funds are charged to profit or loss in the
financial year to which they relate. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in future payments is available.
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(Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(n)

Provisions

		A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
		Warranties
		A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold. The provision is based
on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their associated probabilities.
(o)

Revenue and other income

		(i)

Goods sold

			
Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.
Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed sales agreement,
that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there
is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then the
discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognised.
		(ii)

Rental income

			Rental income from investment property is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the
term of the lease.
		(iii) Government grants
			
Government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions associated with the
grant; they are then recognised in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life
of the asset.
			Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as other income on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognised.
		(iv) Dividend income
			Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s or the Company’s right to receive
payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.
		(v)

Interest income

			
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method in profit or loss except for
interest income arising from temporary investment of borrowings taken specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset which is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs.
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(Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(p)

Borrowing costs

		Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.
		Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets.
		The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or completed.
		
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
(q)

Income tax

		Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income.
		Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous financial years.
		
Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not
recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
		The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
		
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
		
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
		Unutilised reinvestment allowance and investment tax allowance, being tax incentives that is not a tax base of an
asset, is recognised as a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be
available against which the unutilised tax incentive can be utilised.
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(Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(r)

		

Earnings per ordinary share
The Group presents basic earnings per share data for its ordinary shares (“EPS”).

		Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held.
		
(s)

No diluted EPS is disclosed in these financial statements as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares.
Operating segments

		An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s
other components. Operating segment results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker, which
in this case is the Executive Chairman of the Group, to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.
(t)

Contingencies

		Contingent liabilities
		Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the statements of financial position and is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
(u)

Fair value measurements

		
Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for lease transactions, is determined as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.
		For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
		When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible.
Fair value are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the input used in the valuation
technique as follows:
		Level 1: q
 uoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access
at the measurement date.
		Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.
		
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
		The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

39,317
39,317
30,946
70,263

At 1 January 2016		
Additions		
Disposals		
Transfers		

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017		
Additions		
Disposals		
Transfers		
Transfer to investment properties
4
Transfer to intangible assets
7

At 31 December 2017		

			Cost

152,155

120,433
2,667
29,055
-

118,896
1,524
13

28,610

24,936
3,141
(3)
536
-

19,275
5,255
(66)
472

701,710

671,744
8,517
21,449
-

596,869
42,774
32,101

24,441

24,423
18
-

24,418
5
-

3,311

3,384
(73)
-

3,517
(133)
-

9,238

54,851
50,833
(81,986)
(14,417)
(43)

40,658
46,780
(1)
(32,586)

Equipment,				
Capital
furniture
Plant and 		
Motor
work-inand fittings machineries
Solar
vehicles
progress
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

(Cont’d)

				
Buildings
			
Freehold
and
		
Note
land renovation
Group		
RM’000
RM’000

3.
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989,728

939,088
65,176
(76)
(14,417)
(43)

842,950
96,338
(200)
-

Total
RM’000
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68
-

At 1 January 2016		
Depreciation for the year		
Disposals		
Impairment loss		

Accumulated depreciation		
Accumulated impairment loss		

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017		
Depreciation for the year		
Disposals		

Accumulated depreciation		
Accumulated impairment loss		

At 31 December 2017		

23,156

23,156
-

19,404
3,752
-

19,404
-

14,385
5,019
-

14,385
-

15,609

15,609
-

11,854
3,758
(3)

11,854
-

9,015
2,892
(53)
-

9,015
-

542,308

532,968
9,340

488,009
54,299
-

478,669
9,340

423,386
61,215
3,408

417,454
5,932

5,262

5,262
-

4,040
1,222
-

4,040
-

2,819
1,221
-

2,819
-

2,384

2,384
-

1,988
469
(73)

1,988
-

1,620
501
(133)
-

1,620
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

39,317
39,317
70,263

At 1 January 2016		

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017		

At 31 December 2017		

128,999

101,029

104,511

13,001

13,082

10,260

159,402

183,735

173,483

19,179

20,383

21,599

927

1,396

1,897

9,238

54,851

40,658

Carrying amounts								

-

Accumulated depreciation		
Accumulated impairment loss		

Depreciation and impairment loss								

Equipment,				
Capital
furniture
Plant and 		
Motor
work-inand fittings machineries
Solar
vehicles
progress
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

(Cont’d)

				
Buildings
			
Freehold
and
land renovation
Group (cont’d)		
RM’000
RM’000

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
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401,009

413,793

391,725

588,719

579,379
9,340

525,295
63,500
(76)

515,955
9,340

451,225
70,848
(186)
3,408

445,293
5,932

Total
RM’000
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(Cont’d)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

								
Equipment,
								furniture
								
and fittings
Company					
RM’000
Cost
At 1 January 2016					
584
Additions						
7
At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017					
591
Additions						
1,357
At 31 December 2017					

1,948

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2016					
Depreciation for the year					

277
107

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017					
Depreciation for the year					

384
233

At 31 December 2017					

617

Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2016					

307

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017					

207

At 31 December 2017					

1,331

3.1 Impairment loss
		
In 2016, the Group impaired certain plant and machineries by RM3,408,000 based on their recoverable value
due to the discontinuation of certain products. There was no impairment of plant and machineries during the
financial year.
3.2 Capitalisation of borrowing costs
		During the financial year, included in the Group’s additions of property, plant and equipment are borrowing costs
capitalised of RM555,000 (2016: RM759,000).
3.3 Security
		
The Group’s freehold land, buildings and plant and machineries with net carrying amount of RM165,486,000
(2016: RM126,403,000) are charged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group and RM81,289,000
(2016: RM86,343,000) are subject to negative pledge for banking facilities granted to the Group (see Note 14).
3.4 Assets under finance lease liabilities
		Included in the Group’s property, plant and equipment are certain assets acquired under finance lease arrangements
with net carrying amount of RM19,871,000 (2016: RM24,644,000).
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(Cont’d)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

								
Freehold
							 Note
land
Group						
RM’000
Cost
At 1 January 2016/31 December 2016/1 January 2017					
Transfer from property, plant and equipment				
3

14,417

At 31 December 2017					

14,417

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2016/31 December 2016/1 January 2017/31 December 2017				

-

Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2016					

-

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017					

-

At 31 December 2017					

14,417

Fair value
At 1 January 2016					

-

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017					

-

At 31 December 2017					

14,417

	Investment properties of the Group comprise three parcels of freehold land to facilitate future business plan. The land
are charged to secure banking facility granted to the Group (see Note 14).
	
During the financial year, included in the additions of investment properties are borrowing costs capitalised of
RM458,000 (2016: Nil).
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(Cont’d)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

					
Buildings
						Freehold (inclusive of
						
land renovation)
Company			RM’000
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Cost
At 1 January 2016/31 December 2016/1 January 2017 			
21,500
Additions				
-

26,936
2,451

48,436
2,451

At 31 December 2017			

29,387

50,887

21,500

Accumulated depreciation			
At 1 January 2016			
Depreciation for the year			

-

2,686
539

2,686
539

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017			
Depreciation for the year			

-

3,225
622

3,225
622

At 31 December 2017			

-

3,847

3,847

At 1 January 2016			

21,500

24,250

45,750

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017			

21,500

23,711

45,211

At 31 December 2017			

21,500

25,540

47,040

Carrying amounts

Fair value
At 1 January 2016					

63,030

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017					

63,370

At 31 December 2017					

63,536

	Investment properties of the Company comprise freehold land and buildings that are leased to companies within the
Group to earn rental income. These are accounted for as property, plant and equipment at the Group level.
	
Investment properties of the Company amounting to RM47,040,000 (2016: RM45,211,000) are subject to negative
pledge for banking facilities granted to the Group (see Note 14).
The following are recognised in profit or loss in respect of investment properties:
				
Company
							
2017
2016
							 RM’000
RM’000
Rental income				1,827
Direct operating expenses
- Income generating investment properties				
155

1,318
153
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5.

(Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

								
Company
						
Note
2017
2016
							
RM’000
RM’000
Cost of investment				
Capital contribution			
5.1
Less: Impairment loss				
							
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:
				
		
Country of		
Name of entity
incorporation Principal activities
				
				

203,673
13,086
(6,330)

200,173
13,086
(6,330)

210,429

206,929

Effective
ownership interest
and voting interest
2017
2016
%
%

Peps-JV (M) Sdn. Bhd.
Malaysia
			

Manufacturing of automotive
modular components

100

100

EP Polymers (M) Sdn. Bhd.
Malaysia
			
			
			

Manufacturing of Integrated Air Fuel
Module automotive engines,
engineering plastic components
and parts

100

100

Distribution of automotive parts

100

100

Manufacturing of automotive
components

100

100

Fundwin Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Peps-JV (Kedah) Sdn. Bhd.
Malaysia
			
Advance Product Systems
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Dormant

100

100

EP Moulds & Dies (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Dormant

100

100

Peps-JV (Gurun) Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Dormant

100

100

EPMB (Australia) Pty Ltd (1)

Australia

Dormant

-

100

100

100

Held by Peps-JV (M) Sdn. Bhd.
Peps-JV (Melaka) Sdn. Bhd.
Malaysia
			

Manufacturing of automotive
components

Held by Peps-JV (Kedah) Sdn. Bhd.
PT EP Metering & Services (1), (2)
and its subsidiary

Indonesia

Dormant

90

90

PT Tirta Serang Madani

Indonesia

Dormant

81

81

(1)
(2)
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5.

(Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)
5.1 Capital contribution

		Capital contribution relates to advances to its subsidiary whereby repayments of the amount is neither fixed nor
expected in the short term.
5.2 Deregistration of a subsidiary
		
On 23 February 2017, EPMB (Australia) Pty Ltd has completed the voluntary deregistration from the Australian
Securities and Investments Commission.
5.3 Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries
		

The Group’s subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are as follows:

									 PT EP
									Metering
									
& Services
									 RM’000

PT Tirta
Serang
Madani
RM’000

Total
RM’000

		2017
		

NCI percentage of ownership interest and voting interest		10%

19%

		

Carrying amount of NCI				

112

(616)

(504)

		

Loss allocated to NCI				

-

(2)

(2)

		Non-current assets					
		Current assets					
		Current liabilities					

324
3,427
(2,634)

41
(3,281)

		Net assets/(liabilities)				

1,117

(3,240)

		Revenue						
		
Loss for the year					
		
Total comprehensive expense				

(1)
(1)

(11)
(11)

		

Cash flows used in operating activities				

(1)

(11)

		

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents				

(1)

(11)

		
		Summarised financial information before intra-group elimination
		As at 31 December

		Year ended 31 December
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(Cont’d)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

5.3 Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries (cont’d)
									 PT EP
									Metering
									
& Services
									 RM’000

PT Tirta
Serang
Madani
RM’000

Total
RM’000

		2016
		NCI percentage of ownership interest and voting interest

10%

19%

		

Carrying amount of NCI				

112

(614)

(502)

		

Profit allocated to NCI				

-

17

17

Non-current assets					
324
Current assets					
3,421
Current liabilities					
(2,627)

45
(3,274)

Net assets/(liabilities)				
1,118

(3,229)

Summarised financial information before intra-group elimination
		

		

6.

As at 31 December			

Year ended 31 December
Revenue						
Profit for the year					
Total comprehensive income				

-

20
90
90

Cash flows from operating activities				

-

20

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents				

-

20

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

								
Group
							
2017
2016
							 RM’000
RM’000
At cost
Unquoted shares							
Share of post-acquisition reserves 					
										
*

74

Denotes RM10.00

60
955

- *
327

1,015

327
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(Cont’d)

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONT’D)

Details of the joint venture are as follows:
				
		
Country of		
Name of entity
incorporation Principal activity
				
				
Peps Y-Tec (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Distribution of automotive parts

Effective
ownership interest
and voting interest
2017
2016
%
%
60

60

Summarised financial information
								
Group
							
2017
2016
							 RM’000
RM’000
As at 31 December
Current assets							
14,477
Current liabilities							
(12,785)

5,509
(4,964)

Net assets							
1,692

545

Group share of net assets					

1,015

327

Revenue 								
33,853

745

Profit for the year 							

2,058

545

Group’s share of results 					

1,235

327

607

-

Year ended 31 December			

Other information
Cash dividends received by the Group					
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(Cont’d)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

								
Goodwill
Capitalised
									
on development
Group				
Note
consolidation
costs
									RM’000
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Cost
At 1 January 2016						
84,544
Additions							
-

32,527
2,284

117,071
2,284

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017				
84,544
Additions							
Transfer from property, plant and equipment
3		
-

34,811
1,327
43

119,355
1,327
43

At 31 December 2017					

84,544

36,181

120,725

1 January 2016						
Amortisation for the year				

-

27,486
1,865

27,486
1,865

31 December 2016/1 January 2017				
Amortisation for the year				

-

29,351
2,116

29,351
2,116

31 December 2017					

-

31,467

31,467

At 1 January 2016						

84,544

5,041

89,585

At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017				

84,544

5,460

90,004

At 31 December 2017					

84,544

4,714

89,258

Accumulated amortisation

Carrying amounts 			

7.1 Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill
		For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s operating divisions which represent
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
		

The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill are allocated as follows:

								
Group
							
2017
2016
							 RM’000
RM’000
		

Manufacture, assembly and sale of automotive parts				

84,544

84,544

		
The recoverable amount has been determined based on value in use supported by business plan projections
which include new model replacements as well as project collaboration with third parties. Such business plan
projections are based on award of contracts to manufacture several components for the new automotive models
as well as letter of intent to develop and to supply certain modules.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT’D)
7.1 Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill (cont’d)

		
Value in use of the intangible assets was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the
automotive unit and was based on the following key assumptions:
		

•

Cash flows were projected based on past experience of the actual operating results and business plan.

		

•	
Projected revenue for the next 5 years up to 2021 were based on an average growth rate of 1% to 6%
(2016: 1% to 6%) per annum.

		

•	Projected cost of sales for the next 5 years up to 2021 were based on an expected increase of approximately
1% (2016: 2%) per annum.

		

•	A discount rate of 9% (2016: 9%) has been applied in determining the recoverable amount of the automotive
unit. The discount rate was estimated based on the industry average weighted average cost of capital. The
Directors consider this to be a prudent estimate of the cost of capital of the Group, taking into account the
current macro-economic situation.

		
The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the
automotive industry and are based on both external sources and internal sources (historical data).
		Based on the above, the recoverable amount of the unit was determined to be higher than its carrying amount
and therefore, no impairment loss was recognised.
		
The above estimates are particularly sensitive in discount rate and annual revenue growth rate. Any adverse
change in a key assumption may cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its recoverable amount.
8.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are attributable to the following:

					
					

Assets
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

Liabilities
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

Net
2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Group
Property, plant and equipment
Unabsorbed capital allowances
Unutilised investment tax
allowances		
Unutilised reinvestment allowances
Others			

316
319

(494)
12,289

(3,793)
-

(30,741)
-

(3,477)
319

(31,235)
12,289

2,188

12,614
3,440
1,839

(1,080)

(1,137)

1,108

12,614
3,440
702

Net tax assets/(liabilities)
Set-off of tax		

2,823
(728)

29,688
(27,323)

(4,873)
728

(31,878)
27,323

(2,050)
-

(2,190)
-

Net tax assets/(liabilities)

2,095

2,365

(4,145)

(4,555)

(2,050)

(2,190)

(4,145)

(3,945)

(4,145)

(3,945)

Company

						

Property, plant and equipment

-

-
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items (stated at gross):

								
Group
							
2017
2016
							 RM’000
RM’000
Property, plant and equipment					
(132,992)
Provisions						
2,963
Unabsorbed capital allowances					
98,532
Unutilised investment tax allowances					
52,560
Unutilised reinvestment allowance					
22,453
Unutilised tax losses					
3,226
Other deductible temporary differences					
(937)
									

45,805

183
141
23,967
8,120
3,179
180
35,770

	
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items because it is not probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which certain companies in the Group can utilise the benefits thereon.
Movement in temporary differences during the year:
						
						
At
						
1 January
						
2016
						RM’000

Recognised
At
in profit
31 December
or loss 2016/1 January
(Note 20)
2017
RM’000
RM’000

Recognised
in profit
or loss
(Note 20)
RM’000

At
31 December
2017
RM’000

Group
Property, plant and equipment		
Unabsorbed capital allowances		
Unutilised investment tax
allowances			
Unutilised reinvestment allowances
Others				

(31,139)
11,100

(96)
1,189

(31,235)
12,289

27,758
(11,970)

(3,477)
319

14,046
3,583
(113)

(1,432)
(143)
815

12,614
3,440
702

(12,614)
(3,440)
406

1,108

						

(2,523)

333

(2,190)

140

(2,050)

(16)

(3,945)

(200)

(4,145)

Company

				

Property, plant and equipment		
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9.

(Cont’d)

INVENTORIES

								
Group
							
2017
2016
							 RM’000
RM’000
Raw materials					36,956
Work-in-progress				4,546
Finished goods				
12,483
								

31,086
4,944
5,991

53,985

42,021

367,401
10,108
(395)

318,626
2,348
-

Recognised in profit or loss:
Inventories recognised as cost of sales				
Inventories written off				
Reversal of write-down				
The inventories written off and reversal are included in cost of sales.
10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group
				
Note
					

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Trade receivables		
86,220
Amount due from a joint venture
10.1
11,066
Amount due from an affiliated company
10.1
61

78,464
3,859
122

-

-

97,347

82,445

-

-

Amount due from subsidiaries
10.2
Amount due from an affiliated company
10.1
4,016
Other receivables		 9,308

243
14,137

15,368
131
66

23,323
52
78

Trade

						
Non-trade

						

13,324

14,380

15,565

23,453

						

110,671

96,825

15,565

23,453

10.1		

Amounts due from an affiliated company and a joint venture

			The amounts due from an affiliated company and a joint venture are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on demand.
10.2		

Amount due from subsidiaries

			The amount due from subsidiaries is unsecured, subject to interest rate of 3.15% (2016: 3.15%) per annum
and repayable on demand.
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11. OTHER INVESTMENTS
The other investments are deposits with licensed banks that are placed for a period of more than 3 months.
								
Group
							
2017
2016
							 RM’000
RM’000
Deposits placed with licensed banks				

1,363

3,889

	
Deposits placed with licensed banks are pledged for certain bank facilities granted to the Group and the Company
(see Note 14).
12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group
					
					

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Deposits placed with licensed banks		
Cash and bank balances		

2,900
15,127

5,551
34,748

259

1,008
1,758

					

18,027

40,299

259

2,766

	Included in the Group’s deposits placed with licensed banks are RM2,381,000 (2016: RM2,315,000) which are pledged
for certain banking facilities granted to the Group and the Company (see Note 14).
13. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
13.1 Share capital
Group and Company
						 Number		 Number
					 Amount
of shares
Amount
of shares
					2017
2017
2016
2016
					 RM’000
’000
RM’000
’000
		Authorised:
		Ordinary shares		

-

-

500,000

500,000

165,960

165,960

165,960

-

-

-

165,960

165,960

165,960

		Issued and fully paid:
		Ordinary shares
		At 1 January		165,960
		
Transfer from share premium in accordance
with Section 618(2) of the Companies Act 2016		
14,069
		At 31 December		180,029
						
Note 13.1.1
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13. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)
13.1	Share capital (cont’d)
		
Pursuant to the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia which came into effect on 31 January 2017, the concept of
authorised share capital no longer exists.
		In accordance with Section 74 of the Companies Act 2016, the Company’s ordinary shares no longer have a par
or nominal value with effect from 31 January 2017. There is no impact on the number of shares in issue or the
relative entitlement of any of the members as a result of this transition.
		The holders of ordinary shares is entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and is entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
		13.1.1	Included in share capital is share premium amounting to RM14,069,000 that is available to be utilised in
accordance with Section 618(3) of Companies Act 2016 on or before 30 January 2019 (24 months from
commencement of section 74 of Companies Act 2016).
13.2 Reserves
Reserves consist of:
Group

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

				
Note
					

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

		Share premium
13.2.1
		Translation reserve
13.2.2
		
Treasury shares
13.2.3
		Retained earnings		

(4,730)
115,254

14,069
(985)
(4,649)
145,196

(4,730)
36,855

14,069
(4,649)
28,998

					

110,524

153,631

32,125

38,418

		13.2.1 Share premium
			Share premium comprises the premium paid on subscription of shares in the Company over and above
the par value of the shares. In accordance with Section 618 of Companies Act 2016, any amount standing
to the credit of the share premium account has become part of the Company’s share capital. Accordingly,
the share premium has been transferred and become part of the Company’s share capital (see Note 13.1).
		13.2.2 Translation reserve
			
The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the Group entities with functional currencies other than RM. Upon deregistration of
EPMB (Australia) Pty Ltd as disclosed in Note 5, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve relating
to EPMB (Australia) Pty Ltd is reclassified to profit or loss.
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13. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT’D)
13.2 Reserves (cont’d)
		13.2.3 Treasury shares
			The owners of the Company, by an ordinary resolution passed in an Annual General Meeting held on 26
May 2017, approved the Company’s plan to repurchase its own shares.
			During the financial year, the Company repurchased 161,300 (2016: 159,300) of its issued ordinary shares
(“EP Shares”) from the open market at an average buy-back price of RM0.50 (2016: RM0.58) per ordinary
share. The total consideration paid for the share buy-back of EP Shares by the Company during the
financial year was RM81,056 (2016: RM92,180). The repurchase transaction was financed by internally
generated funds. The EP Shares repurchased were retained as treasury shares.
			As at 31 December 2017, the Group held 7,035,300 (2016: 6,874,000) EP Shares as treasury shares out
of its total issued and paid-up share capital. As at 31 December 2017, the number of shares in issue and
paid-up, net of treasury shares is therefore 158,924,700 (2016: 159,086,000) ordinary shares.
			None of the treasury shares held were resold or cancelled during the financial year. While the shares are
held as treasury shares, the rights attached to them such as voting, dividends and participation in other
distribution and otherwise are suspended.
14. LOANS AND BORROWINGS
								
Group
						
Note
2017
2016
							
RM’000
RM’000
Non-current
Secured
Finance lease liabilities			
Term loans				

14.1
14.2

12,480
73,893

24,487
57,647

86,373

82,134

6,557
30,410
118,548
25,000
10,101

7,881
4,542
30,240
121,303
25,000
9,695

190,616

198,661

									 276,989

280,795

								
Current
Secured
Finance lease liabilities			
Bai Bithaman Ajil facilities			
Term loans				
Bankers’ acceptances			
Revolving credit			
Bank overdraft			

14.1
14.2
14.2
14.2
14.2
14.2
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14. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONT’D)
14.1 Finance lease liabilities
		

Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:

							 Present			 Present
					
Future		 value of
Future		 value of
					
minimum		minimum
minimum		minimum
					
lease		
lease
lease		
lease
					
payments
Interest
payments
payments
Interest
payments
					
2017
2017
2017
2016
2016
2016
					
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
		Group
		
		

Less than one year
Between one and five years

					

7,069
12,892

(512)
(412)

6,557
12,480

9,116
25,663

(1,235)
(1,176)

7,881
24,487

19,961

(924)

19,037

34,779

(2,411)

32,368

		
Finance lease liabilities of the Group amounting to RM18,494,000 (2016: RM31,476,000) are guaranteed by the
Company.
14.2 Security
		Group
		
Bai Bithaman Ajil facilities
		Secured
		

The Bai Bithaman Ajil financing facilities are secured and supported by way of:

		
		
		

a)
b)
c)

corporate guarantee issued by the Company;
specific Deed of Assignment of contract proceeds; and
full debenture over asset financed.

		Term loans
		Secured
		

The term loans are secured and supported by way of:

		

a)	
corporate guarantee issued by the Company for the repayment by the subsidiaries of the loan, interest
thereon and all other sums payable;
b) first fixed charge over certain Group’s machineries (see Note 3);
c) pledge of fixed deposit by the subsidiaries (see Note 11 and Note 12);
d) specific Deed of Assignment of contract proceeds; and
e) specific debenture over equipment financed.

		
		
		
		

		Bankers’ acceptances, bank overdraft and revolving credit
		Secured
		

The bankers’ acceptances and revolving credit are secured and supported by way of:

		
		
		
		
		

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

fixed and floating charges over certain Group’s property, plant and equipment (see Note 3);
first party legal charge on the lands owned by the Company;
third party first legal charge on the lands owned by a subsidiary;
corporate guarantee issued by the Company and certain subsidiaries; and
negative pledge from the Company and certain subsidiaries.
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14. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONT’D)
14.2 Security (cont’d)
		

Significant financial covenants for certain term loans granted:

		
		
		

•
•
•

dividend shall not be declared without prior consent from the loan provider.
gearing ratio shall not exceed 1.5 times.
debt service cover ratio for certain subsidiary shall be no less than 1.5 times.

14.3 Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities
						
Net
					
changes
					
At
from
					
1 January
financing
					
2017 cash flows
					
RM’000
RM’000
		

Foreign
At
exchange 31 December
movement
2017
RM’000
RM’000

Group

		Term loans		
		
Finance lease liabilities		
		
Bai Bithaman Ajil facilities		
		Bankers’ acceptances		
		Revolving credit		
		Bank overdraft		

87,887
32,368
4,542
121,303
25,000
9,695

16,416
(11,754)
(4,542)
(2,755)
406

(1,577)
-

104,303
19,037
118,548
25,000
10,101

Total liabilities from financing activities		280,795

(2,229)

(1,577)

276,989

15. DEFERRED INCOME
								
Group
							
2017
2016
							
RM’000
RM’000
Non-current
Government grant				

2,951

3,141

330

541

3,281

3,682

Current
Government grant				
							

	
In the previous financial years, the Group received a government grant upon the construction of solar panels on a
factory site and for the new purchases of machineries. During the financial year, RM401,000 (2016: RM1,642,000) has
been recognised as other income in profit or loss.
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16. PROVISION FOR WARRANTIES
								
Group
							
2017
2016
							
RM’000
RM’000
At 1 January				
Provision made during the year				
Provision utilised during the year				

650
1,694
(1,062)

769
882
(1,001)

At 31 December				

1,282

650

	The Group provides warranties on certain automotive parts and materials sold and undertake to repair or replace items
that fail to perform satisfactory or meet the specification required. The provision for warranties is based on estimates
made from historical warranty data.
17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group
				
Note
					

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

73,786
874

61,768
79

-

-

74,660

61,847

-

-

2
23,561
19,473

16
18,690
9,488

56,650
1,765
105

70,158
335
11

					

43,036

28,194

58,520

70,504

					

117,696

90,041

58,520

70,504

Trade
Trade payables		
Amount due to a joint venture
17.1
					
Non-trade
Amount due to an affiliated company
17.1
Amount due to subsidiaries
17.2
Other payables
17.3
Accruals			

17.1 Amounts due to a joint venture and an affiliated company
		
The amounts due to a joint venture and an affiliated company are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.
17.2 Amount due to subsidiaries
		
The amount due to subsidiaries is unsecured, subject to interest rate of 3.15% (2016: 3.15%) per annum and
repayable on demand.
17.3 Other payables
		
Included in other payables are amounts due to suppliers of RM15,281,000 (2016: RM1,904,000) in respect of
capital expenditure incurred.
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18. FINANCE COSTS
Group
					
					

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

Interest expense of financial liabilities that are
not at fair value through profit or loss:					
- Amount due to subsidiaries		
1,681
- Finance lease liabilities		
806
876
- Bankers’ acceptances		
5,232
5,775
- Term loans and Bai Bithaman Ajil facilities		
5,651
5,635
- Bank overdraft		
796
534
- Revolving credit		
1,264
1,309
- Others			 619
686
-

2,417
-

					

14,368

14,815

1,681

2,417

Recognised in profit or loss		
Capitalised on qualifying assets:
- Property, plant and equipment (Note 3)		
- Investment properties (Note 4)		

13,355

14,056

1,681

2,417

555
458

759
-

-

-

					

14,368

14,815

1,681

2,417
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19. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Group
				
Note
					

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

(Loss)/Profit before tax is arrived at
after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration						
- Audit fees
- KPMG in Malaysia		
378
338
90
80
- Non-audit fees
- KPMG in Malaysia		
20
25
20
25
- Local affiliates of KPMG in Malaysia		
457
87
11
11
Amortisation of intangible assets
7
2,116
1,865
Depreciation of investment properties
4
622
539
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
3
63,500
70,848
233
107
Impairment loss:
- Property, plant and equipment
3
3,408
- Trade receivables		
42
Inventories written off
9
10,108
2,348
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary		
985
Loss on foreign exchange
- Realised		
1,121
1,147
- Unrealised		
375
2,495
Personnel expenses (including key management
personnel)
- Contributions to Employees Provident Fund		
3,045
3,014
43
44
- Wages, salaries and others		
33,634
33,520
744
786
Provision for warranties
16
1,694
882
Royalties			
339
93
-

and after crediting:						
Amortisation of government grant
15
401
1,642
Dividend income from:
- Subsidiary 		
10,000
20,000
- Joint venture 		
607
Finance income 		
321
363
560
738
Gain on foreign exchange
- Realised 		
34
1,111
- Unrealised		
2,604
392
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment		
25
Rental income from property		
709
148
1,827
1,318
Reversal of inventories write-down
9
395
-
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20. TAX EXPENSE
Group
					
					

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Income tax expense on continuing operations		
Share of tax of equity-accounted joint venture		

13,021
390

3,905
103

433
-

178
-

Total tax expense		

13,411

4,008

433

178

Malaysian - Current year		
		
- Prior years		

4,454
8,707

4,236
2

229
4

163
(1)

Total income tax recognised in profit or loss		

13,161

4,238

233

162

Origination and reversal of temporary differences		
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses		
Under/(Over) provision in prior year		

(1,704)
(3,332)
4,896

(962)
629

200
-

32
(16)

Total deferred tax recognised in profit or loss		

(140)

(333)

200

16

Share of tax of equity-accounted joint venture		

390

103

-

-

13,411

4,008

433

178

(Loss)/Profit for the year		
Total tax expense		

(29,944)
13,021

(17,298)
3,905

7,857
433

17,646
178

(Loss)/Profit excluding tax 		

(16,923)

(13,393)

8,290

17,824

(4,062)
4,794
2,408
(3,332)

(3,214)
2,244
4,347
-

1,990
839
(2,400)
-

4,278
717
(4,800)
-

(192)

3,377

429

195

8,707
4,896

2
629

4
-

(1)
(16)

13,411

4,008

433

178

Current tax expense

Deferred tax expense					

Total tax expense		
Reconciliation of tax expense

Income tax calculated using Malaysian tax
rate of 24% (2016: 24%)		
Non-deductible expenses		
Tax exempt income		
Effect of unrecognised deferred tax assets		
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses		
					
Under/(Over) provision in prior years
- Current tax expense		
- Deferred tax expense		
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21. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION
The key management personnel compensations are as follows:
Group
					
					

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

Directors:
- Fees			
- Remuneration		
- EPF contribution		

			
450
561
450
467
1,479
1,612
177
189
-

Total short term employee benefits		

2,106

2,362

450

467

845
102

595
68

-

-

3,053

3,025

450

467

Other key management personnel:
- Wages, salaries and others		
- EPF contribution		
					

	Other key management personnel comprise persons other than the Directors of Group entities, having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group entities directly or indirectly.
	The estimated monetary value of Directors’ and other key management personnel’s benefit-in-kind is RM32,000 (2016:
RM42,000) and RM7,000 (2016: RM11,000) respectively.
22. LOSS PER ORDINARY SHARE
Basic loss per ordinary share
	
The calculation of basic loss per share at 31 December 2017 was based on the loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of RM29,942,000 (2016: RM17,315,000) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding,
calculated as follows:
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
								
Group
							
2017
2016
							
RM’000
RM’000
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company			

29,942

17,315
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22. LOSS PER ORDINARY SHARE (CONT’D)
Basic loss per ordinary share (cont’d)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
									
Group
							
2017
							
’000

2016
’000

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January				
Effect of treasury shares held				

165,960
(6,946)

165,960
(6,799)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December		

159,014

159,161

Basic loss per ordinary share 				

18.8

10.9

Diluted loss per ordinary share
There is no dilution in loss per share as there is no potential diluted ordinary shares.
23. DIVIDENDS
Dividends recognised by the Company:
						
Sen per
Total
						
share
amount
							 RM’000

Date of
payment

2016
Second interim 2015 ordinary			

0.50

796

31 March 2016

	
No dividend was paid since the end of the previous financial year and the Directors do not recommend any final
dividend to be paid for the financial year under review.
24. OPERATING SEGMENTS
The Group operates under one main business segment which is Automotive.
Geographical segments
	In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on geographical location of
customers. The non-current assets of the Group are located in Malaysia. Capital expenditure incurred is also in Malaysia.
								
Group
							
2017
2016
							
RM’000
RM’000
Geographical information
Revenue from continuing operations
Malaysia					
Saudi Arabia				

461,985
10,256

425,107
10,416

							

472,241

435,523

	
Four major customers (2016: four major customers) (including sub-contractors of these customers) of the Group
contribute 94% (2016: 92%) to the total revenue of the Group.
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
25.1 Categories of financial instruments
		

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows:

		
		

(a)
(b)

Loans and receivables (“L&R”); and
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (“FL”).
2017

					
					
					

2016

Carrying
amount
RM’000

L&R/
(FL)
RM’000

Carrying
amount
RM’000

L&R/
(FL)
RM’000

110,671
1,363
18,027

110,671
1,363
18,027

96,825
3,889
40,299

96,825
3,889
40,299

130,061

130,061

141,013

141,013

		Loans and borrowings		
		
Trade and other payables		

(276,989)
(117,696)

(276,989)
(117,696)

(280,795)
(90,041)

(280,795)
(90,041)

					

(394,685)

(394,685)

(370,836)

(370,836)

15,565
259

15,565
259

23,453
2,766

23,453
2,766

15,824

15,824

26,219

26,219

(58,520)

(58,520)

(70,504)

(70,504)

(58,520)

(58,520)

(70,504)

(70,504)

		Group
		Financial assets
		
Trade and other receivables		
		
Other investments		
		
Cash and cash equivalents		
					
		Financial liabilities

		Company
		Financial assets
		
		

Trade and other receivables		
Cash and cash equivalents		

					
		Financial liabilities
		

Trade and other payables		
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
25.2 Net gains and losses arising from financial instruments
					
Group
Company
					
2017
2016
2017
2016
					
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
		
		
		

Net gains/(losses) on:
Loans and receivables		
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost		

					

279
(12,213)

408
(16,240)

560
(1,681)

738
(2,417)

(11,934)

(15,832)

(1,121)

(1,679)

25.3 Financial risk management
		
The
		•
		•
		•

Group and the Company have exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

25.4 Credit risk
		Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from its receivables from
customers. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from loans and advances to subsidiaries and
financial guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to subsidiaries.
		Receivables
		

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

		Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
		As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from receivables is represented
by the carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.
		
Management has taken reasonable steps to ensure that receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are
stated at their realisable values. A significant portion of these receivables are regular customers that have been
transacting with the Group. The Group uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the trade receivables.
Any trade receivables having significant balances past due more than 120 days, which are deemed to have higher
credit risk, are monitored individually.
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
25.4 Credit risk (cont’d)
		Receivables (cont’d)
		Impairment losses
		

The ageing of trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period was:

							Individual
						 Gross impairment
						 RM’000
RM’000

Net
RM’000

Group
		2017					
		
		
		
		

Not past
Past due
Past due
Past due

due 			
1 - 30 days			
31 - 120 days			
more than 120 days			

						

74,727
8,880
2,465
197

(49)

74,727
8,880
2,465
148

86,269

(49)

86,220

66,832
5,419
6,120
100

(7)

66,832
5,419
6,120
93

78,471

(7)

78,464

2016
		
		
		
		

Not past
Past due
Past due
Past due

due 			
1 - 30 days			
31 - 120 days			
more than 120 days			

						

		

The movements in the allowance for impairment losses of trade receivables during the financial year were:

									
Group
							
2017
2016
							
RM’000
RM’000
		
		

At 1 January				
Impairment loss recognised				

7
42

7
-

		

At 31 December				

49

7

		The allowance account in respect of trade receivables is used to record impairment losses. Unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is possible, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against the
receivable directly.
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
25.4 Credit risk (cont’d)
		Financial guarantees
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
		The Company provides unsecured financial guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries. The Company monitors the results of the subsidiaries and repayments made by the subsidiaries on
an ongoing basis.
Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
		

The maximum exposure to credit risk relates to the following:

									
Company
							
2017
2016
							
RM’000
RM’000
Corporate guarantee issued to:			
- financial institutions for banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries		

137,797

129,624

As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that any subsidiary would default on repayment.
The financial guarantees have not been recognised since the fair value on initial recognition was not material.
		Intercompany balances
		Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
		The Company provides unsecured loans and advances to wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company monitors the
loans and advances from the subsidiaries on monthly basis.
		Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
		
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying
amounts in the statements of financial position.
		Impairment losses
		As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that the loans and advances to the subsidiaries are
not recoverable. The Company does not specifically monitor the ageing of the advances to subsidiaries.
25.5 Liquidity risk
		
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from its various payables, loans and borrowings.
		
As at 31 December 2017, the Group and the Company have net current liabilities of RM124,276,000 and
RM42,501,000 respectively and the Group’s net loss for the year was RM29,944,000. The preparation of the
financial statements on a going concern basis is dependent on the ability of the Group and Company to
generate sufficient cash flows from their operations, obtaining support from their bankers and creditors to finance
their operations and achieving profitable operations. The Group remains positive that it will be able to generate
sufficient cash flows from its operations as the subsidiaries have been awarded with new projects. In view of the
foregoing, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statement on a going concern basis
and the Group and the Company will be able to meet their liabilities as and when they fall due.
		
It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at
significantly different amounts.
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Carrying
Contractual
Contractual
amount
interest rate
cash flows
RM’000		RM’000

Under 1
year
RM’000

1 - 2
years
RM’000

2 - 5
years
RM’000

More than
5 years
RM’000

317,177

35,764
7,069
119,474
26,265
10,909
117,696

51,304

44,315
6,989
-

42,963

37,060
5,903
-

1,467

1,467
-

370,836		 382,500

94,866
4,636
34,781
122,390
25,315
10,471
90,041

			

4.96% - 6.00%
7.10%
2.35% - 3.62%
3.33% - 4.72%
5.04%
8.00%
-

87,887
4,542
32,368
121,303
25,000
9,695
90,041

		
Secured term loans
		
Secured Bai Bithaman Ajil facilities
		
Finance lease liabilities
		
Secured bankers’ acceptances
		
Revolving credit
		
Bank overdraft
		
Trade and other payables

295,851

33,879
4,636
9,119
122,390
25,315
10,471
90,041

41,096

32,063
9,033
-

45,553

28,924
16,629
-

-

-

Non-derivative financial liabilities							

		2016						

394,685		 412,911

118,606
19,961
119,474
26,265
10,909
117,696

			

4.00% - 6.00%
2.35% - 3.03%
3.27% - 4.94%
5.06%
8.00%
-

104,303
19,037
118,548
25,000
10,101
117,696

		
Secured term loans
		
Finance lease liabilities
		
Secured bankers’ acceptances
		
Revolving credit
		
Bank overdraft
		
Trade and other payables

Non-derivative financial liabilities							

2017							

		Group

			
			
			

		The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period based on
undiscounted contractual payments:

		Maturity analysis
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96
198,102

60,305
137,797

Under 1
year
RM’000

-

-

1 - 2
years
RM’000

-

-

2 - 5
years
RM’000

-

-

More than
5 years
RM’000

70,504		
201,992

72,368
129,624

			

0.00% - 3.15%
-

70,504
-

		
Trade and other payables
		
Financial guarantees

201,992

72,368
129,624

-

-

-

-

-

-

		Non-derivative financial liabilities							

		2016

58,520		
198,102

			

60,305
137,797

58,520
-

0.00% - 3.15%
-

Carrying
Contractual
Contractual
amount
interest rate
cash flows
RM’000		RM’000

(Cont’d)

		
Trade and other payables
		
Financial guarantees

		Non-derivative financial liabilities

		2017

		
		Company

			
			
			

		Maturity analysis (cont’d)
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
25.6 Market risk
		Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates that will
affect the Group’s and the Company’s financial position or cash flows.
		25.6.1 Currency risk
			The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in
a currency other than the respective functional currencies of the Group entities. The currencies giving rise
to this risk are primarily Euro (“EUR”), U.S. Dollar (“USD”), Renminbi (“RMB”) and Japanese Yen (“JPY”).
		

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

			The Group does not transact in any derivative instruments or hedge their current exposure. However, the
Board of Directors keeps this policy under review and regularly monitors the exposures to avoid significant
adverse impact to the Group.
			

Exposure to foreign currency risk

			The Group’s exposure to foreign currency (a currency which is other than the functional currency of the
Group entities) risk, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period was:
							
Denominated in
					
EUR
USD
RMB
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

JPY
RM’000

Group
Balances recognised in statement
of financial position
2017
Trade receivables		
Loans and borrowings 		
Trade payables		
(2,050)

2,008
(2,384)

(1,301)

(18,349)
(2,611)

(2,050)

(376)

(1,301)

(20,960)

Trade receivables		
Loans and borrowings		
Trade payables		
(3,201)

747
(2,395)

(2,056)

(31,253)
(2,062)

Net exposure

(1,648)

(2,056)

(33,315)

Net exposure 		
2016

(3,201)
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
25.6 Market risk (cont’d)
		

25.6.1 Currency risk (cont’d)

			

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

			A 10% (2016: 10%) strengthening of Ringgit Malaysia against the following currencies at the end of the
reporting period would have increased/(decreased) post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown below.
The analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate variance that the Group considered to be
reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remained constant and ignores any impact of forecasted sales and purchases.
					
					

Profit or (loss)
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

Group
EUR				
USD				
RMB				
JPY				

156
29
99
1,593

243
125
156
2,532

 10% (2016: 10%) weakening of Ringgit Malaysia against the above currencies at the end of the reporting
A
period would have had equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above,
on the basis that all other variables remained constant.
		25.6.2 Interest rate risk
 he Group’s and the Company’s fixed rate financial assets and borrowings are exposed to a risk of change
T
in their fair values due to changes in interest rates. The Group’s variable rate borrowings are exposed to
a risk of changes in cash flows due to changes in interest rates. Short term receivables and payables are
not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
In managing interest rate risk, the Group and the Company maintain a balanced portfolio of fixed and
floating rate instruments. All interest rate exposures are monitored and managed by the Group and the
Company on a regular basis.
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
25.6 Market risk (cont’d)
		25.6.2 Interest rate risk (cont’d)
Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Group’s and the Company’s significant interest-bearing financial
instruments, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period was:
Group
					
					

Company
2017
2016
RM’000
RM’000

2017
RM’000

2016
RM’000

Financial assets		
Financial liabilities		

4,263
(164,562)

9,440
(177,004)

15,368
(56,650)

23,323
(70,158)

		

(160,299)

(167,564)

(41,282)

(46,835)

(112,427)

(103,790)

-

-

Fixed rate instruments

Floating rate instruments
Financial liabilities		

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
 he Group and the Company do not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair
T
value through profit or loss, and the Group and the Company do not designate derivatives as hedging
instruments under a fair value hedge accounting model. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the end
of the reporting period would not affect profit or loss.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
 change of 100 basis points (“bp”) (2016: 100 bp) in interest rates at the end of the reporting period
A
would have increased/(decreased) post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.
Profit or (loss)
2017
					
					
					

2016

100 bp
increase
RM’000

100 bp
decrease
RM’000

100 bp
increase
RM’000

100 bp
decrease
RM’000

(854)

854

(789)

789

Group
Floating rate instruments
Cash flow sensitivity (net)		

99

100

(Cont’d)

-

-

-

-

-

(99,137)
(18,492)

(99,137)
(18,492)

Fair value of financial instruments
not carried at fair value
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

(99,137)
(18,492)

Total
fair
value
RM’000

		
Secured term loans		
		
Secured Bai Bithaman
		
Ajil facilities		
		
Finance lease liabilities		
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(4,636)
(33,038)

(86,881)

(4,636)
(33,038)

(86,881)

(4,636)
(33,038)

(86,881)

		Financial liabilities										

		2016

		
Secured term loans		
		
Finance lease liabilities		
-

		Financial liabilities

		2017

		Group

Fair value of financial instruments
carried at fair value
				Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
		 		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

(4,542)
(32,368)

(87,887)

(104,303)
(19,037)

Carrying
amount
RM’000

		The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value and those not carried at fair value for which fair value is disclosed, together with
their fair values and carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position.

		It was not practicable to estimate the fair value of the Group’s investment in unquoted shares due to the lack of comparable quoted prices in active
market and the fair value cannot be reliably measured.

		The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short term receivables and payables and short term borrowings reasonably approximate their fair
values due to the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments.

25.7 Fair value information
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25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
25.7 Fair value information (cont’d)
Non-derivative financial liabilities
		
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the end of the reporting period. The
market rate of interest is determined by reference to similar borrowing arrangements and lease agreements.
		

Transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values

		There has been no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values during the financial year (2016: No transfer
in either directions).
Level 3 fair value
		

Level 3 fair value is estimated using unobservable inputs for the financial assets and liabilities.

		The valuation techniques in determining the fair values disclosed in Level 3 for the financial instruments not carried
at fair value is discounted cash flow.
26. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
	The Group’s objective when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base and safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The Directors monitor and are determined to maintain an optimal debt-to-equity ratio
that complies with debt covenants and regulatory requirements.
	During 2017, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2016, was to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio below
1.5. The debt-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 were as follows:
									
Group
							
2017
2016
							
RM’000
RM’000
Total borrowings (Note 14)				
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 12)				
Less: Other investments (Note 11)				

276,989
(18,027)
(1,363)

280,795
(40,299)
(3,889)

Net debt					

257,599

236,607

Total equity				

290,049

319,089

Debt-to-equity ratio				

0.89

0.74

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year.
	The Group is also required to maintain certain debt-to-equity ratio to comply with debt covenants, failing which, an
event of default may be triggered. The Group has not breached these covenants.
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27. OPERATING LEASES
Leases as lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rental are payables as follows:
									
Group
							
2017
2016
							
RM’000
RM’000
Less than one year				
Between one and five years				

891
36

1,308
630

							

927

1,938

	The Group leases a number of premises and factory facilities under operating leases. The leases typically run for a
period between 1 to 3 years, with an option to renew the respective leases after expiry. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.
Leases as lessor
	The Group and the Company lease out its investment properties and premises. The future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable leases are as follows:
					
Group
Company
					
2017
2016
2017
2016
					
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Less than one year		
Between one and five years		

1,258
1,437

222
-

2,228
1,437

1,192
1,118

					

2,695

222

3,665

2,310

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
									
Group
							
2017
2016
							
RM’000
RM’000
Capital expenditure commitments
Plant and equipment
Contracted but not provided for				
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29. RELATED PARTIES
Identity of related parties
	For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group or the
Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or exercise significant influence
over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or the Company and the
party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.
	Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly and entity that provides key
management personnel services to the Group. The key management personnel include all the Directors of the Group,
and certain members of senior management of the Group.
	
The Group and the Company have related party relationship with its subsidiaries, joint venture, affiliated companies
and key management personnel.
Significant related party transactions
	
The significant related party transactions of the Group and the Company (other than key management personnel
compensations as disclosed in Note 21) are as follows:
				
Amounts transacted
for the year ended
							
2017
2016
							
RM’000
RM’000
Group
Affiliated companies in which the controlling shareholders and Directors have
interests
Purchase of goods				
Rental receivable				

(35,704)
1,006

(38,907)
459

30,578

7,742

1,118
643
560
(1,681)

1,170
578
704
(2,417)

709

148

Joint venture
Sale of goods				
Company
Subsidiaries
Rental receivable				
Management fees receivable				
Interest receivable				
Interest payable				
Affiliated companies in which the controlling shareholders and Directors have
interests			
Rental receivable				

Related party transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business under negotiated basis.
	The net balance outstanding arising from the above transactions have been disclosed in Note 10 and Note 17. All the
outstanding balances are expected to be settled in cash by the related parties.
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STATEMENT
BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016
In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 44 to 103 are drawn up in accordance with
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of Companies
Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of
31 December 2017 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

…………………………………………………………
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Director

…………………………………………………………
Aidan Hamidon
Director
Shah Alam, Malaysia
Date: 29 March 2018

STATUTORY
DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016
I, Hamidon Bin Abdullah, the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of EP Manufacturing Bhd, do
solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 44 to 103 are, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the declaration to be true, and by virtue
of Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed Hamidon Bin Abdullah, NRIC: 530129-01-6037, at Petaling Jaya
in the State of Selangor on 29 March 2018.

…………………………………………………………
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Before me:
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF EP MANUFACTURING BHD
(Company No. 390116-T) (Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of EP Manufacturing Bhd, which comprise the statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2017 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on
pages 44 to 103.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of
the Company as at 31 December 2017, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements
of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our auditors’ report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct
and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”), and the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
i)

Net current liabilities of the Group and of the Company
Refer to Note 1(b) - Basis of measurement.
The key audit matter
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s and the Company’s current liabilities exceeded their current assets by
RM124,276,000 and RM42,501,000 respectively and the Group’s net loss for the year was RM29,944,000. The
preparation of the financial statements on a going concern basis is dependent on the ability of the Group and the
Company to generate sufficient cash flows from their operations, obtaining support from their bankers and creditors
to finance their operations and achieving profitable operations.
The assessment on the ability of the Group and the Company to generate sufficient cash flows to meet their current
liabilities is a key audit matter as it involved consideration of future events which are uncertain and required significant
judgements.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF EP MANUFACTURING BHD (Cont’d)
(Company No. 390116-T) (Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
Key Audit Matters (cont’d)
i)

Net current liabilities of the Group and of the Company (cont’d)
How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedures include, among others, assessing the mitigating plan put forward by the management to address
the net current liabilities position, including the credit facilities available to the Group and Company.
We considered the operating cash flows of the Group and the Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2017 and their budgets, including the appropriateness of key assumptions made, to ascertain that the Group and
Company will have sufficient cash flows to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.
We assessed the timing of the loan repayments of the Group and the Company and considered any breach of loan
covenants and its potential impact, if any.
We also considered the adequacy of disclosures in the financial statements in relation to the going concern basis of
preparation.

ii)

Valuation of Goodwill on consolidation
Refer to Note 7 - Goodwill on consolidation.
The key audit matter
The Group is required to annually test the amount of goodwill for impairment. The goodwill on consolidation amounted
to RM84,544,000 as of 31 December 2017. The Group estimates the recoverable amount of goodwill based on
discounted future cash flows using estimates of profit projections, including sales growth rate and gross profit margins
for the next 5 years and discount rate for operating units which the goodwill is allocated to.
There is a risk that the carrying value of this goodwill balance may not be recovered from future cash flows which
may be affected by future market or economic conditions. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting and
discounting future cash flows, this is one of the key judgemental areas that our audit is concentrated on.
How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedures included, among others, obtaining the management’s impairment assessment based on
the discounted cash flow projections of the operating units which the goodwill is allocated to. We evaluated the
appropriateness of the key assumptions used in particular those relating to revenue growth, gross profit margins, the
discount rate and terminal growth rate applied to the cash flows in the model.
We assessed the key assumptions for the cash flow projections, with reference to internally and externally derived
sources and taking into account the Group’s historical forecasting accuracy.
We also used our own valuation specialist to assist us in evaluating the appropriateness of the discount rate used
by the Group. A range of sensitivities were performed across the different elements of the impairment model in order
to understand which judgements and assumptions were most sensitive in achieving the management’s recoverability
assessment.
We considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in respect of the key assumptions that reflect the risks inherent
in the valuation of goodwill on consolidation.
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
Key Audit Matters (cont’d)
iii)

Recoverability of trade receivables
Refer to Note 10 - Trade and other receivables.
The key audit matter
As the automotive sector faces a number of challenges and with the significant balance of trade receivables of
RM86,220,000 as at 31 December 2017, the determination as to whether trade receivables are collectible involve the
Group’s judgements. We focused on this area due to the degree of judgement involved estimation of recoverability of
the amounts owing from trade receivables.
How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedures included testing the Group’s credit control procedures including the controls around extending
credit and reviewing the payment history and financial information pertaining to the customers.
We performed detailed testing on the account receivables ageing to ascertain the underlying accuracy of information
used in assessing the adequacy of impairment loss of trade receivables. We also discussed with management and
assessed the historical trading experience and collection trend of these customers.
We reviewed the post year end cash collections against year-end trade receivables and investigated the significant
individual overdue balances by reference to recent history of recoveries on these balances and review the
correspondences with the customers.
We reviewed the historical accuracy of impairment loss of trade receivables and the level of bad debt write-offs during
the year.

iv)

Valuation of inventories
Refer to Note 9 - Inventories.
The key audit matter
The Group has significant inventory balance as at 31 December 2017 of RM53,985,000. The Group produces finished
products in batches which may go beyond the required quantities to fulfil an order. As a result, the excess inventories
produced may be slow moving until the next order for the similar product is fulfilled.
Allowance is made against inventory for estimated losses related to slow moving or obsolete inventory. The valuation
of the inventory is a key audit matter because of the judgement involved in assessing the level of allowance required.
How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others, testing the design and effectiveness of controls over
identifying slow moving inventories and obtaining an understanding of the Group’s process for measuring the amount
of write down required. These controls are also designed to identify product lines where current sales prices do not
exceed cost.
We assessed the Group’s provision for those product lines identified as slow moving, or potentially slow moving, by
relying on the ageing of inventory maintained by the Group. We also tested the accuracy of the ageing of inventory
used for this purpose.
We tested samples of inventories to sales subsequent to the year end and ascertained that they were sold at more
than its carrying amount.
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
Key Audit Matters (cont’d)
v)

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and recoverability of receivables from subsidiaries (Company level)
Refer to Note 5 - Investment in subsidiaries and Note 10 - Trade and other receivables.
The key audit matter
The Company has investment in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 of RM210,429,000 and amount owing from
subsidiaries of RM15,368,000. Given the nature of the business and challenges faced by the automotive sector, the
investment in subsidiaries may be subject to impairment loss and receivables from subsidiaries may be doubtful.
How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedures included, amongst others, reviewing the management’s assessment on the recoverability of
receivables from subsidiaries to ascertain if any impairment is required on the balance with subsidiaries.
We reviewed management’s assessment on the appropriateness of the carrying amounts of investment in subsidiaries
for investments with indication of impairment, including the appropriateness of business model, underlying data and
assumptions used in the cash flow projections.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in Directors’ Report and Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control but does not include the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this
auditors’ report, and the remaining parts of the annual report, which are expected to be made available to us after that date.
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we
do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the
date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
When we read the remaining parts of the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to the Directors of the Company and take appropriate actions in accordance with
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing.
Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
ability of the Group and of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•	Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
•	Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of
the Group and of the Company.
•	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by Directors.
•	Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the ability of the Group or of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
•	Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.
•	
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express and opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our auditors’ report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, the subsidiaries of which we have not acted
as auditors are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.
OTHER MATTER
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies
Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of
this report.

KPMG PLT
LLP0010081-LCA & AF 0758
Chartered Accountants
Petaling Jaya, Malaysia
Date: 29 March 2018

110

Ong Beng Seng
Approval Number: 2981/05/18(J)
Chartered Accountant

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS
AS AT 30 MARCH 2018

Issued Shares 		: 165,960,000 Ordinary Shares (Inclusive of 7,035,300 treasury shares)
Class of Shares		: Ordinary shares
Voting Rights		: One vote per ordinary share

Size of Shareholdings
Less than 100
100 to 1,000
1,001 to 10,000
10,001 to 100,000
100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares
5% and above of issued shares
TOTAL

No. of
Shareholders

% of
Shareholders

No. of Shares

% of Issued
Share Capital

21
626
963
353
69
3

1.03
30.76
47.32
17.35
3.39
0.15

866
578,930
4,706,389
11,244,950
98,021,999
51,406,866

0.00
0.35
2.84
6.78
59.06
30.97

2,035

100.00

165,960,000

100.00

THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
No.
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

Name
Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd
HLB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd
Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd
Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB Bank for Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd
Maybank Securities Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Mohamed Bin Hashim
Maybank Securities Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Shahrul Azhan Bin Samsudin @ Shamsuddin
EP Manufacturing Bhd
Share Buy Back Account
RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Aturan Omega Sdn Bhd
Symphony Vista Sdn Bhd
EB Nominees (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad
Pledged Securities Account for Mohd Nizam Bin Mohamed
JF Apex Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Abu Sahid Bin Mohamed
Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Tan Seok Hien
Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB Bank for Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Michelle Cheah Min Tze
EP Properties (M) Sdn Bhd
Chew Soo Ton

No. of Shares

% of Shares

29,006,866
11,400,000

17.48
6.87

11,000,000

6.63

7,650,000

4.61

7,476,865

4.51

6,401,700

3.86

6,047,600

3.64

5,891,300

3.55

5,517,800
4,716,600

3.32
2.84

4,212,900

2.54

4,200,000

2.53

4,185,000

2.52

4,110,000

2.48

4,005,500
3,465,000
3,341,900

2.41
2.09
2.01
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THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS (CONT’D)
No.

Name

18

HLB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Abu Sahid Bin Mohamed
Maybank Securities Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Tan Seok Hien
Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd
Lee Chee Beng
Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Mohd Fuad Bin A. Manaf
Dr Linden Hamidon
EP Manufacturing Bhd
Share Buy Back Account
Lim Khuan Eng
Leau Kim Pun @ Liau Kim Pun
Goh Kim Cheok
Tan Teck Peng
Yeoh Phek Leng
Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Tan Lim Soon

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

TOTAL

No. of Shares

% of Shares

2,707,700

1.63

2,652,500

1.60

2,596,967
2,269,100
1,283,800

1.56
1.37
0.77

1,200,000
987,700

0.72
0.60

940,000
735,000
600,000
568,000
550,000
500,000

0.57
0.44
0.36
0.34
0.33
0.30

140,219,798

84.48

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Direct
Name
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd

Indirect

No. of Shares

%

No. of Shares

%

8,447,133

5.32

65,218,833*

41.04

61,753,833

38.86

-

-

Note:
* Deemed interest by virtue of his shareholdings in Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd and EP Properties (M) Sdn Bhd pursuant to
Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.
DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
Direct
Name
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Dr Linden Hamidon
Shaari Bin Haron

Indirect

No. of Shares

%

No. of Shares

%

8,447,133

5.32

65,218,833*

41.04

20,000

0.01

-

-

1,329,384

0.84

-

-

Note:
* Deemed interest by virtue of his shareholdings in Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd and EP Properties (M) Sdn Bhd pursuant to
Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
Gross
Floor
Area
sq. m.

Net Book
Value as at
31.12.2017
RM

Age of
Building Date of Last
Years
Revalution

Tenure

Land
Area
sq. m.

1.

Lot No. 72 & 73
Hicom Glenmarie Industrial Park
Phase 2A, Mukim of Damansara
Daerah Klang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Land with
factory, stores
and office

Freehold

13,859

15,480

43,421,772

23

21/3/2017

2.

G.M. No. 4776, Lot No. 1401
Mukim of Ulu Yam
District of Ulu Selangor
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
with factory
buildings

Freehold

10,117

4,645

9,596,000

10

21/3/2017

3.

G.M. No. 5061, Lot No. 1410
Mukim of Ulu Yam
District of Ulu Selangor
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
with factory,
stores and office

Freehold

13,785

5,808

15,519,144

14

21/3/2017

4.

G.M. No. 5062, Lot No. 1412
Mukim of Ulu Yam
District of Ulu Selangor
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
(vacant)

Freehold

13,405

-

3,265,288

-

21/3/2017

5.

G.M. No. 4974, Lot No. 1403
Batu 29, Jalan Ipoh
44300 Batang Kali
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
with car park

Freehold

8,979

-

2,239,737

-

21/3/2017

6.

G.M. No. 4973, Lot No. 1406
Batu 29, Jalan Ipoh
44300 Batang Kali
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
with factory,
office and guard
house

Freehold

11,002

7,834

12,907,118

21

21/3/2017

7.

G.M. No. 4956, Lot No. 1409
Batu 29, Jalan Ipoh
44300 Batang Kali
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
with stores
and office

Freehold

13,786

11,952

25,056,775

13

21/3/2017

8.

G.M. No. 5073, Lot No. 1404
Mukim of Ulu Yam
District of Hulu Selangor
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
with car park and
water treatment
plant

Freehold

9,485

-

2,000,000

-

21/3/2017

9.

G.M. No. 5072, Lot No. 1407
Mukim of Ulu Yam
District of Hulu Selangor
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
with factory, lab,
canteen, locker
room and guard
house

Freehold

11,508

11,808

20,558,337

11

21/3/2017

10.

Geran 31609, Lot No. 1652
Mukim Sungei Petai
Daerah Alor Gajah
Melaka

Industrial land
(vacant)

Freehold

15,941

-

3,017,293

-

1/11/2013

11.

PT Nos. 2227, 2228, 2231,
2232, 2233, 2234 and 2235
Mukim Pegoh
Daerah Alor Gajah
Melaka

Industrial land
(vacant)

Freehold 128,204

-

35,582,518

-

22/9/2015

12.

Lot 210 & 211, PT 2229 & 2230
Jalan Hicom Pegoh 7
Kawasan Perindustrian
Hicom Pegoh
78000 Alor Gajah, Melaka

Industrial land
with factory,
stores and office

Freehold

16,727

38,760,779

1

22/9/2015

Location/Address

Description

35,491
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NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Twenty-Second (22 nd ) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of
EP Manufacturing Bhd (“EPMB” or “the Company”) will be held at Topas Room, The Saujana Hotel Kuala
Lumpur, Saujana Resort, Jalan Lapangan Terbang SAAS, 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Friday,
25 May 2018 at 10.30 a.m. for the purpose of transacting the following businesses:AGENDA
AS ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.	To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 together
with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

(Explanatory
Note A)

2.	To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of up to RM450,000 from 21st Annual General Meeting until
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2019.

Resolution 1

3.	To re-elect the following Directors who retire in accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s Articles
of Association (Constitution) and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election:(i)

Encik Shaari Bin Haron

Resolution 2

(ii)

Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim

Resolution 3

(iii)

Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail

Resolution 4

4.	
To re-appoint KPMG PLT as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

Resolution 5

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions:
5.

Retention of Encik Shaari Bin Haron as Independent Non-Executive Director

Resolution 6

	“THAT subject to the passing of Resolution 2, Encik Shaari Bin Haron who has served for a cumulative
terms of more than twelve years be retained as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting in accordance with the Malaysian Code on
Corporate Governance.”
6.

Authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of the Companies Act 2016
“THAT subject always to the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”), the Articles of Association (Constitution)
of the Company, the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and
the approvals of relevant governmental/regulatory authorities, where such approval is required, the
Directors be and are hereby authorised and empowered pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of
the Act, to issue and allot shares in the Company at any time, and upon such terms and conditions
and for such purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit, provided that the
aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this resolution does not exceed 10% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company for the time being and that the Directors be and are
hereby empowered to obtain approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so
issued on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and that such authority shall continue to be in force until
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.”
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7.	
Proposed renewal of authority for the Company to purchase its own shares (“Proposed Share
Buy-Back”)

Resolution 8

“THAT subject to the compliance with Section 127 of the Companies Act 2016, the provision of the
Constitution of the Company, the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and the approvals of all relevant governmental/ regulatory authorities, the
Company be and is hereby authorised to buy back such number of ordinary shares in the Company
(“Proposed Share Buy-Back”) as may be determined by the Directors of the Company from time
to time through Bursa Securities upon such terms and conditions as the Directors may deem fit,
necessary and expedient in the interest of the Company, provided that:
(a)	the aggregate number of ordinary shares which may be purchased and/or held by the Company
at any point of time pursuant to this Proposed Share Buy-Back shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company;
(b)	the maximum funds to be allocated by the Company for the Proposed Share Buy-Back shall not
exceed the total retained profits of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2017;
and
(c)	
such authority shall commence upon passing of this resolution and continue to be effective
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company or, upon the
expiration of the period within which the next AGM is required by law to be held or, unless
revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in a general meeting, whichever is
the earlier, but so as not to prejudice the completion of a purchase made before the aforesaid
expiry date.
AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to deal with the ordinary
shares bought back in their absolute discretion in all or any of the following manner:
(i) 	to cancel the shares so purchased;
(ii) 	to retain the shares so purchased as treasury shares (of which may be dealt with in accordance
with Section 127(7) of the Act);
(iii) 	retain part of the shares so purchased as treasury shares and cancel the remainder; or
(iv) 	in
 any other manner as may be permitted and prescribed by the Act, the Main Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and any other relevant authorities for the time
being in force.
AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to take all such steps as
they may consider necessary and expedient to implement and to give effect to the Proposed Share
Buy-Back as may be allowed by the relevant governmental/regulatory authorities.”
8.

 roposed renewal of shareholders’ mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a
P
Revenue or Trading Nature (“Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate”)

Resolution 9

“THAT subject to the provisions of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad, the Company and its subsidiaries (“EPMB Group”) be and are hereby authorised to enter
into recurrent related party transactions from time to time involving the interest of Directors, Major
Shareholders or persons connected with Directors and/or Major Shareholders of the EPMB Group
(“Related Parties”) as stated in Section 2.4 of Part B of the Circular to Shareholders dated 26 April
2018 subject to the followings:i)	the transactions are of a revenue or trading nature which are necessary for day to day operations
of the Company and its subsidiaries, carried out in the ordinary course of business on normal
commercial terms which are not more favourable to the Related Parties than those generally
available to the public and are not to the detriment of the minority shareholders.
ii)	disclosure is made in the annual report of the aggregate value of transactions conducted during
the financial year pursuant to the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate.
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8.

 roposed renewal of shareholders’ mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a
P
Revenue or Trading Nature (“Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate”) (Cont’d)
AND THAT such authority shall continue to be in force until:(a)	the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company at which time the
said authority will lapse unless by a resolution passed at a general meeting of the Company, the
authority is renewed;
(b)	the expiration of the period within which the next AGM is required to be held pursuant to Section
340(2) of the Companies Act 2016 (the “Act”) (but shall not extend to such extension as may be
allowed pursuant to Section 340(4) of the Act); or
(c)

revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in a general meeting;

whichever is the earlier.
AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to complete and take all such
steps and do all acts and things in such manner as they may consider necessary and expedient to
give effect to the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate.”
9.

To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given.

By Order of the Board

TEO WEI THENG (MAICSA 7056007)
Company Secretary
Selangor
26 April 2018
Notes:
1.	A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting shall be entitled to appoint not more than two (2) persons as his proxy to attend and
vote in his stead. Where a member appoints two (2) proxies to attend the same meeting, the member shall specify the proportions of his
shareholdings to be represented by each proxy. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company.
2.	Where a member is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities
account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each
omnibus account it holds.
	An exempt authorised nominee refers to an authorised nominee defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 (“SICDA”)
which is exempted from compliance with the provisions of subsection 25A(1) of the SICDA.
3.	The instrument appointing a proxy, in the case of an individual, shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing, and
in the case of a corporation, shall be either given under the corporation’s seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney of the corporation
duly authorised.
4.	
The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office at No. 8 & 10, Jalan Jurutera U1/23,
Seksyen U1, Kawasan Perindustrian Hicom Glenmarie, 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan not less than 48 hours before the time set for
holding the Meeting or at any adjournment thereof.
5.	Only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 18 May 2018 shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting or
appoint proxy/proxies to attend and/or vote on his/her behalf.
6.	Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all the Resolutions set out in this
Notice will be put to vote by poll.
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7.

Explanatory Note A

	This Agenda item is meant for discussion only as it does not require shareholders’ approval under the provisions of Section 340(1)(a) of the
Companies Act 2016. As such, this item is not put forward for voting.
8.

Explanatory notes on Special Businesses:i)

Proposed Retention of Encik Shaari Bin Haron as Independent Non-Executive Director
Encik Shaari Bin Haron was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 20 January 1997 and has served the Company for a
cumulative term of more than twelve years as at the date of this notice of AGM. Encik Shaari continues to fulfill the criteria and definition
of an independent director as set out in Chapter 1 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. He has
extensive experience in legal practice and able to contribute valuable professional independent views and judgement in the Board discussion
and decision making. He is also the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director. The Board recommends that the approval be sough through
a two-tier voting process for the continuing of office of Encik Shaari be retained as Independent Non-Executive Director.

ii)

Authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of the Companies Act 2016
The Proposed Resolution 7 is the renewal of the general mandate obtained from the shareholders at the last AGM. As at the date of this
notice, the Company did not allot any share pursuant to the general mandate granted to the Directors at the 21st Annual General Meeting
held on 26 May 2017.
This Resolution 7, if passed, will empower the Directors to allot and issue ordinary shares up to an amount not exceeding 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company for the time being for such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the interest of the
Company. This authority, unless revoked or varied by the Company at a general meeting, will expire at the next AGM.
At this juncture, there is no decision to issue new share. The Company will make an announcement in respect of the purpose and utilisation
of proceeds arising from such issue.
The authority will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities for future investment projects or undertakings or
for working capital purpose as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit.

iii) Proposed Share Buy-Back and Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate
For Resolutions 8 and 9, further information on the Proposed Share Buy-Back and Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate are set out in the
Statement/Circular to Shareholders dated 26 April 2018 despatched together with this Annual Report.
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STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING
NOTICE OF 22ND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(Pursuant to Paragraph 8.27(2) of the
Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad)
The details of the Directors who are standing for re-election as per Agenda 3 of the Notice of 22nd Annual General Meeting
are set out in the Board of Director’s profile and Analysis of Shareholdings sections of this Annual Report.
Details of the general mandate to issue securities in the Company pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies
Act 2016 are set out in Explanatory Note 8 of the Notice of AGM.
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No of Shares held

EP MANUFACTURING BHD (390116-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

PROXY FORM
I/We

(FULL NAME IN BLOCK AND I.C.NO./COMPANY NO.)

of

(ADDRESS)

being a member/members of EP MANUFACTURING BHD hereby appoint
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK AND I.C.NO)

of

(ADDRESS)

and/or failing him/her,

(FULL NAME IN BLOCK AND I.C.NO)

of
(ADDRESS)

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the TwentySecond (22nd) Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Topas Room, The Saujana Hotel Kuala Lumpur,
Saujana Resort, Jalan Lapangan Terbang SAAS, 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Friday, 25 May 2018 at 10.30
a.m. or at any adjournment thereof as indicated below:
RESOLUTION

For

1

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees

2

Re-election of Encik Shaari Bin Haron

3

Re-election of Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim

4

Re-election of Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail

5

Re-appointment of Auditors

6

Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director

7

Approval for Directors to allot and issue shares

8

Renewal of Authority for Share Buy-Back

9

Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions

Against

(Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided how you wish your vote to be cast. If no instruction as to voting is
given, the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion.)
Dated this ……………day of ……………….. 2018
								

…………………………........…………………
Signature/ Common Seal of Shareholder(s)

Tel No of shareholder(s)
Notes:

1.	A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting shall be entitled to appoint not more than two (2) persons as his proxy to attend and vote in his stead.
Where a member appoints two (2) proxies to attend the same meeting, the member shall specify the proportions of his shareholdings to be represented by each
proxy. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company.
2.	Where a member is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus
account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
	An exempt authorised nominee refers to an authorised nominee defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 (“SICDA”) which is exempted
from compliance with the provisions of subsection 25A(1) of the SICDA.
3.	The instrument appointing a proxy, in the case of an individual, shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing, and in the case of a
corporation, shall be either given under the corporation’s seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney of the corporation duly authorised.
4.	
The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office at No. 8 & 10, Jalan Jurutera U1/23, Seksyen U1,
Kawasan Perindustrian Hicom Glenmarie, 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan not less than 48 hours before the time set for holding the Meeting or at any
adjournment thereof.
5.	Only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 18 May 2018 will be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting.
6.	Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all the Resolutions set out in this Notice will be put
to vote by poll.
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The Company Secretary
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